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Chairman & Managing Director's Message 

 

 

 

 

Dear Stakeholders, 

It is my pleasure to present to you the Annual Report of Aztec Fluids & Machinery Limited 
for the fiscal year 2024. As we reflect on the past year, I am proud to share that our company 
has not only navigated challenges successfully but has also achieved significant 
milestones, setting the stage for sustained growth and innovation in the years to come. 

 

Comprehensive Product Portfolio and Services 

At the heart of our success lies our diverse product portfolio, designed to meet the evolving 
needs of various industries. Our offerings can be categorized into three main segments: 

1. Printers: We offer a wide range of cutting-edge printers, each tailored to specific 
industrial applications:  

o Continuous Inkjet Printers (CIJ), Thermal Transfer Over Printers (TTO), Drop on 
Demand Printers (DOD), NIJ (piezoelectric) Printers and Laser Printers 

In FY2024, we sold 1,134 printers, generating revenue of Rs. 2,252.73 lakhs, 
highlighting the strong demand for our printing solutions. 

2. Inks and Consumables: Our comprehensive range of inks and consumables 
ensures optimal performance of our printers across various applications:  

o Specialty Inks, Standard Inks, Makeup Fluids: Maintaining ink consistency in 
varying environmental conditions and Cleaning Solvents 

In FY2024, we sold 38,556.18 liters of ink, generating revenue of Rs. 1,776.23 
lakhs, and 203,347.03 liters of makeup and cleaner fluids, contributing Rs. 
1,906.26 lakhs to our revenue. 

3. Services and Support: Our commitment to customer satisfaction extends beyond 
product sales:  



o Annual Maintenance Contracts (AMC), On-demand Service, Training Programs, 
and Customization Services. 

Our service offerings, including AMC and on-demand services, contributed Rs. 
166.02 lakhs to our revenue in FY2024. 

Additionally, the sale of spare parts generated revenue of Rs. 664.95 lakhs, 
underlining our strong after-sales support network. 

 

Innovation and Market Expansion 

Our commitment to innovation remains unwavering. In FY2024, we continued to enhance 
our comprehensive product portfolio, offering state-of-the-art printers, high-quality inks, 
and essential consumables.  

We have also made significant strides in expanding our market reach. While maintaining 
our strong presence across 24 states and 3 union territories in India, we have successfully 
ventured into international markets in Africa, the Middle East, and Asia. Our strategic 
partnership as the exclusive distributor for Lead Tech (Zhuhai) Electronic Co. Ltd., in several 
countries, has been instrumental in this expansion. 

 

Industry Landscape and Growth Opportunities 

The global market is projected to grow at a CAGR of 5.64% from 2024 to 2029, while the 
Indian market is expected to outpace this with a CAGR of 8.9% from 2025 to 2030, reaching 
USD 0.64 billion by 2030. Additionally, this growth is underpinned by robust expansion 
across various sectors that rely on our solutions. 

 These trends present significant opportunities for Aztec Fluids & Machinery Limited to 
expand our market share and diversify our product offerings across these rapidly growing 
sectors. 

 

Financial Performance and Market Position 

The fiscal year 2024 has been a year of remarkable growth for Aztec Fluids & Machinery 
Limited. Our total income reached Rs. 6,898.62 lakhs, marking a substantial increase from 
the previous year. This growth is reflected in our improved EBITDA of Rs. 897.73 lakhs and a 
net profit of Rs. 613.41 lakhs, demonstrating the strength of our business model and the 
increasing demand for our products and services. 

As a leading provider of advanced coding and marking solutions in India, we have further 
solidified our position in the market. Our customer base has expanded to over 1,100 clients, 
including prestigious companies across various industries. This diverse clientele 
underscores the versatility and reliability of our solutions. 

 

 

 



Strategic Initiatives for Future Growth 

Looking ahead, we are optimistic about the growth potential in the coding and marking 
solutions industry. To capitalize on emerging opportunities, we have implemented several 
strategic measures: 

 New Manufacturing Facility: We have acquired land in Kanera, Kheda, Gujarat, for 
a new printer assembly unit. Production at this new facility commenced on August 
31, 2024^. This facility will enhance our manufacturing capabilities and help meet 
the growing demand for our products. 

 Tailored Solutions: We are focusing on providing customized solutions for tracking, 
tracing, and quality control to address our customers' specific needs and demands. 

 Strategic Acquisition: The acquisition of Jet Inks Private Limited is a significant 
step in diversifying our product offerings and strengthening our presence in 
Southern and Eastern India. This move bolsters our position in the food and pharma 
sectors, marking a new era of growth. 

 Customer Retention: We have built long-term relationships with our customers, 
many of whom have remained with us for years. Our high customer retention rate 
over the past five years reflects our commitment to delivering high-quality products 
and exceptional after-sales service, demonstrating our ability to meet diverse 
business needs effectively. 

 R&D Initiatives: This approach empowers us to undertake new R&D initiatives, 
allowing us to develop innovative solutions tailored to our customers' evolving 
needs. 

 Operational Efficiency: We continue to optimize our supply chain, inventory 
management, and cost structures to maintain our competitive edge while 
delivering high-quality products at attractive prices. Additionally, we aim to 
manufacture 80% of sub-parts domestically within the next 3-5 years to reduce the 
cost of imports. 

 Industry-Specific Solutions: Recognizing the varied growth rates across 
industries, we are developing tailored solutions to meet the specific needs of high-
growth sectors. 

 

Gratitude and Commitment  

We extend our heartfelt gratitude to our esteemed stakeholders, valued customers, and 
dedicated employees for their unwavering support and trust in Aztec Fluids & Machinery 
Limited. Your confidence in our vision and products has been instrumental in our success 
this fiscal year, reflected in our growing customer base across various industries. This 
diversity underscores the versatility and reliability of our coding and marking solutions, 
driving us to continually innovate and excel. 

As we look to the future, Aztec Fluids & Machinery Limited reaffirms its commitment to 
innovation, quality, and customer satisfaction. We are dedicated to expanding our market 
reach, both domestically and internationally, while continuously enhancing our product 
portfolio. Our strategic initiatives, including the new manufacturing facility in Gujarat and 
the acquisition of Jet Inks Private Limited, underscore our commitment to growth and 
operational excellence. We pledge to maintain our focus on developing industry-specific 
solutions, optimizing our operations, and delivering high-quality products at competitive 



prices, all aimed at creating sustainable value for our stakeholders and advancing the 
coding and marking solutions industry. 

Thank you for your continued support and trust in Aztec Fluids & Machinery Limited. We 
look forward to embarking on the next chapter of our journey together, embracing new 
challenges and opportunities that will shape the future of the company.  

 



NOTICE OF 14TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 14th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Shareholders 
of AZTEC FLUIDS & MACHINERY LIMITED will be held on Saturday, 28th day of 
September, 2024 through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) at 12:00 Noon to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 
1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Balance Sheet for the financial year 

ended on 31st March, 2024 and the Statement of Profit & Loss as on the said date 
together with the Cash Flow Statements and Notes to the Accounts and Reports 
of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the 
following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors 
and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are hereby 
considered and adopted.” 

2. To ratify and confirm the Interim Dividend declared by the Board of Directors of 
the Company. 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby 
given to ratify and confirm the Interim dividend of Rs. 15/- per equity shares i.e. 
150% on face value of equity shares of Rs. 10/- each declared and paid by the 
Board of Directors of the Company during the financial year 2023-24.” 

3. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Pulin Kumudchandra Vaidhya (DIN: 
03012651), who retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being 
eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the 
following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Pulin Kumudchandra 
Vaidhya (DIN: 03012651), who retires by rotation at this meeting, be and is 
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company” 

4. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company for the period of five years. 
 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant to review and 
recommendation of Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company, M/s 
KARMA & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad having Firm’s 
Registration No. 127544W/W1100376 be and are hereby appointed as Statutory 



Auditors of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT M/s KARMA & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, be 
and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 
(Five) consecutive years from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till 
the conclusion of the 19th Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2028-29, 
at such remuneration as may be determined by the Audit Committee in 
consultation with the Auditors and duly approved by the Board of Directors of the 
Company. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors of the Company be and is 
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be required in 
order to give effect to the above resolution on behalf of the Company.” 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 
5. Approval of Material Related Party Transaction with Jet Inks Private Limited. 

 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188(1) (a) and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and in 
pursuance to Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“Listing 
Regulations”) and any other provisions of applicable law(s), including any 
amendment(s) or statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time 
being in force (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Applicable Laws”), and in 
accordance with Company’s policy on related party transactions, as may be 
applicable from time to time, the consent, sanction, permission or approval as the 
case may be of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors of the Company or any duly authorized committee of Directors 
constituted /empowered by the Board, from time to time, to enter, carry out or 
continue to enter any contract or arrangements or transactions, whether by way of 
renewal(s) or extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier contracts/ arrangements / 
transactions or otherwise of purchase or supply of any goods or materials as 
mentioned in Section 188(1)(a) for an amount aggregating the limit upto Rs. 30 
Crores (Rupees Thirty Crores Only) per annum that the Company may enter from 
time to time in one or more tranches for a period of 5 years from the financial year 
2024-25 with related party Jet Inks Private Limited (“Jet Inks”), a Company falling 
within the definition of ‘Related Party’ under Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing 
Regulations on such material terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed 
between the Company and Jet Inks, provided that the said contract(s)/ 
arrangement(s)/ agreement(s)/transaction(s) shall be carried out in the ordinary 
course of business of the Company and at an arm’s length basis. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is 
hereby authorized to take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining 
approvals, statuary, contractual or otherwise, in relation to the above and to settle 
all matters arising out of and incidental thereto, and to sign and execute all deeds, 
applications, documents and writings that may be required, on behalf of the 
Company and generally to do all acts, deeds, matters and things that may be 
necessary, proper, expedient or incidental thereto for the purpose of giving effects 
to this Resolution. 
 



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby further authorized to 
delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to director(s), committee(s), 
executive(s), officer(s) or representatives(s) of the Company or to any other person 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary or 
expedient and also to execute such documents, writings etc. as may be necessary 
to give effect to this resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any 
matter referred to or contemplated in the foregoing resolution, be and are hereby 
approved, ratified and confirmed in all respects”. 

 
6. Approval of Material Related Party Transaction with Fluidtech Corp. 

 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188(1) (a) and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and in 
pursuance to Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“Listing 
Regulations”) and any other provisions of applicable law(s), including any 
amendment(s) or statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time 
being in force (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Applicable Laws”), and in 
accordance with Company’s policy on related party transactions, as may be 
applicable from time to time, the consent, sanction, permission or approval as the 
case may be of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors of the Company or any duly authorized committee of Directors 
constituted /empowered by the Board, from time to time, to enter, carry out or 
continue to enter any contract or arrangements or transactions, whether by way of 
renewal(s) or extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier contracts/ arrangements / 
transactions or otherwise of purchase or supply of any goods or materials as 
mentioned in Section 188(1)(a) for an amount aggregating the limit upto Rs. 50 
Crores (Rupees Fifty Crores Only) per annum that the Company may enter from 
time to time in one or more tranches for a period of 5 years from the financial year 
2024-25 with related party Fluidtech Corp (“Fluid”), a Partnership Firm falling 
within the definition of ‘Related Party’ under Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing 
Regulations on such material terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed 
between the Company and Fluidtech Corp, provided that the said contract(s)/ 
arrangement(s)/ agreement(s)/transaction(s) shall be carried out in the ordinary 
course of business of the Company and at an arm’s length basis. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is 
hereby authorized to take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining 
approvals, statuary, contractual or otherwise, in relation to the above and to settle 
all matters arising out of and incidental thereto, and to sign and execute all deeds, 
applications, documents and writings that may be required, on behalf of the 
Company and generally to do all acts, deeds, matters and things that may be 
necessary, proper, expedient or incidental thereto for the purpose of giving effects 
to this Resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby further authorized to 
delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to director(s), committee(s), 
executive(s), officer(s) or representatives(s) of the Company or to any other person 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary



 or expedient and also to execute such documents, writings etc. as may be 
necessary to give effect to this resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any 
matter referred to or contemplated in the foregoing resolution, be and are hereby 
approved, ratified and confirmed in all respects”. 

 
7. Approval of Material Related Party Transaction with M/s. Axis Druckfarben. 

 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188(1) (a) and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and in 
pursuance to Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“Listing 
Regulations”) and any other provisions of applicable law(s), including any 
amendment(s) or statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time 
being in force (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Applicable Laws”), and in 
accordance with Company’s policy on related party transactions, as may be 
applicable from time to time, the consent, sanction, permission or approval as the 
case may be of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors of the Company or any duly authorized committee of Directors 
constituted /empowered by the Board, from time to time, to enter, carry out or 
continue to enter any contract or arrangements or transactions, whether by way of 
renewal(s) or extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier contracts/ arrangements / 
transactions or otherwise of purchase or supply of any goods or materials as 
mentioned in Section 188(1)(a) for an amount aggregating the limit upto Rs. 25 
Crores (Rupees Twenty Five Crores Only) per annum that the Company may enter 
from time to time in one or more tranches for a period of 5 years from the financial 
year 2024-25 with related party M/s. Axis Druckfarben, a Partnership Firm falling 
within the definition of ‘Related Party’ under Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing 
Regulations on such material terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed 
between the Company and M/s. Axis Druckfarben, provided that the said 
contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ agreement(s)/transaction(s) shall be carried out in 
the ordinary course of business of the Company and at an arm’s length basis. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is 
hereby authorized to take such steps as may be necessary for obtaining 
approvals, statuary, contractual or otherwise, in relation to the above and to settle 
all matters arising out of and incidental thereto, and to sign and execute all deeds, 
applications, documents and writings that may be required, on behalf of the 
Company and generally to do all acts, deeds, matters and things that may be 
necessary, proper, expedient or incidental thereto for the purpose of giving effects 
to this Resolution. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby further authorized to 
delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to director(s), committee(s), 
executive(s), officer(s) or representatives(s) of the Company or to any other person 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary or 
expedient and also to execute such documents, writings etc. as may be necessary 
to give effect to this resolution. 
 
 
 
 



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any 
matter referred to or contemplated in the foregoing resolution, be and are hereby 
approved, ratified and confirmed in all respects”. 

 
Place: Ahmedabad By Order of the Board 
Date: 24.08.2024 

SD/- 
 

Ushma Dudani 
Company Secretary 
Membership No. 21452 

 
Registered Office: 
PARTH PLINTH, 4TH FLOOR (TOP FLOOR) TAKSHASHILA 
SQUARE, NR. KRISHNABAG FOUR RD, MANINAGAR, 
AHMEDABAD. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
NOTES: 

1. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) 
read together with the rules made thereunder and other applicable provisions, if any, in 

respect of the business under Item No. 4 of the Notice is annexed hereto and forms part of 
this Notice. 

 
2. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 

05, 2020, General Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, General Circular No. 
19/2021 dated December 08, 2021, General Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 
2021, General Circular No.2/2022 dated May 05, 2022, General Circular No. 11/2022 
dated December 28, 2022 and General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 
(“MCA Circulars”) and other applicable circulars issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI) including Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 
dated October 7, 2023, has permitted the Companies to conduct the Annual General 
Meeting (‘AGM’) through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) 
till September 30, 2024. In accordance with the said circulars of MCA, SEBI and 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the ‘SEBI Listing 
Regulations’), the 39th AGM of the Company shall be conducted through VC/OAVM 
(hereinafter called ‘AGM’). Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) will 
provide facility for voting through remote e-voting, participation in the AGM through 
VC/OAVM facility and e-voting during the AGM. The procedure for participating in the 
meeting through VC/OAVM is explained at Note below and is also available on the 
website of the Company at www.aztecindia.org. 

 
3. In terms of sections 101 and 136 of the Act, read with the rules made thereunder, the 

listed companies may send the notice of AGM and the annual report, including financial 
statements, boards’ report, etc. by electronic mode. Pursuant to the said provisions of 
the Act read with MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated October 7, 2023, Notice of 14th 

AGM along with the Annual Report for F.Y. 2023-24 is being sent only through electronic 
mode to those members whose email addresses are registered with the 
Company/depositories. Members may note that the Notice of the 14th AGM and Annual 
Report for F.Y. 2023-24 will also be available on the Company’s website at 
www.aztecindia.org, website of the stock exchanges i.e., BSE Ltd. (‘BSE’) at 
www.bseindia.com and on the website of Bigshare Services Private Limited at 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com/ . In this notice, the term member(s) or shareholder(s) 
are used interchangeably. 

4. The deemed venue for 14th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company at Part H 
Plinth, 4th Floor (Top Floor) Takshashila Square, Nr. Krishnabag Four Rd, Maninagar, 
Ahmedabad, Gujarat - 380028. 

 
5. In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Pulin Kumudchandra Vaidhya 

(DIN: 03012651), Director of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The relevant 
details, pursuant to Regulations 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial 
Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, 
in respect of Director seeking re-appointment/appointment at this AGM is annexed as 
Annexure-1. 



 
6. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of 

Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Sunday, 22nd 

day of September, 2024 to Saturday, 28th day of September, 2024 (both days inclusive). 
 
 

7. The Company has appointed CS Ravi Kapoor, Practising Company Secretary 
(Membership No. FCS: 2587; CP No: 2407), to act as the Scrutinizer for remote e-voting 
as well as the e- voting on the date of the AGM, in a fair and transparent manner. 

 
8. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is 

entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be 
a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars 
through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. 
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available 
for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this 
Notice. 

 
9. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, the Company requests those Members who have not 

yet registered their e-mail address, to register the same directly with their DP, in case 
shares are held in electronic form and to the Company, in case shares are held in 
physical form. Further, members holding shares in electronic form are requested to 
notify the changes in the above particulars, if any, directly to their Depository 
Participants (DP). 

 
10. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are 

required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body 
Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through 
VC / OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said 
Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered 
email address to ravi@ravics.com with a copy marked to cs@aztecfluids.com. 

 
11. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 

of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and 
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 
(as amended), and pursuant to above mentioned MCA Circulars the Company is 
providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be 
transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement 
with Bigshare Services Private Limited (Bigshare) for facilitating voting through electronic 
means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member 
using remote e- voting as well as the e-voting facility on the date of the AGM will be 
provided by Bigshare. 

 
12. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 

scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice. 

 
13. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for 

the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 



14. Pursuant to MCA General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023, the facility to 
appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. 
However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State 
or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e- 
voting. 

 
15. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed 

at the AGM, are requested to write to the Company on or before 27th September, 2024 
(upto 05:00 P.M.) through email on cs@aztecfluids.com. The same will be replied by the 
Company suitably. 

 
Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS 
ARE AS UNDER: 

 
i. The remote e-voting period begins on Wednesday, 25th September, 2024 at 09:00 a.m. 

and ends on Friday, 27th September, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. During this period shareholders 
of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as 
on the cut-off date (record date) of Saturday, 21st September, 2024 may cast their vote 
electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by Bigshare for voting 
thereafter. 

 
ii. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled 

to vote at the meeting venue. 

 
iii. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 

09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are 
required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all 
shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by 
the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 

 
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting 
facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and 
maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders. 

 
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public 
consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account 
holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ 
websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would 
be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not 
only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience 
of participating in e-voting process. 
 
 
 

 
iv. In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 



December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their 
demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
(A) Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual 

meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given 
below: 

Type of 
shareholders 

Login Method 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 
their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to 
reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for 
users to login to Easi/Easiest is 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/home/login or visit CDSL 
website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System 
Myeasi Tab and then use your existing my easi username & password. 

 2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e- 
Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as 
per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of BIGSHARE the e- 
Voting service provider and you will be re-directed to i-Vote website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there 
is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers i.e. BIGSHARE, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service 
providers’ website directly. 

 3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration 

 4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link 
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user 
will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress, 
and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers. Click on BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to i-Vote 
website for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period. 



 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e- 
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e- 
Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e- 
Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and you will be re-directed to 
i-Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS “Portal or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

 3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name BIGSHARE and you will be 
redirected to i-Vote website for casting your vote during the remote e- 
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their 
Depository 
Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e- 
Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting 
option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 
you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 
022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 

 
(B) Login method for e-Voting for shareholder other than individual shareholders 

holding shares in Demat mode & physical mode is given below: 

 
 You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: 

https://ivote.bigshareonline.com 

 Click on “LOGIN” button under the ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ section to Login on E-
Voting Platform. 

 
 Please enter you ‘USER ID’ (User id description is given below) and ‘PASSWORD’ which 

is shared separately on you register email id. 
o Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account should enter 16 Digit 

Beneficiary ID as user id. 
o Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account should enter 8 Character 

DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID as user id. 
o Shareholders holding shares in physical form should enter Event No + Folio 

Number registered with the Company as user id. 

 
Note If you have not received any user id or password please email from your registered 
email id or contact i-vote helpdesk team. (Email id and contact number are mentioned in 
helpdesk section). 

 
 Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and login. 

 
NOTE: If Shareholders are holding shares in demat form and have registered on to e- 
Voting system of https://ivote.bigshareonline.com and/or voted on an earlier event of 
any company then they can use their existing user id and password to login. 

 
 If you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ tab and 

then Click on ‘Forgot your password? 
 Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) 

option and click on ‘Reset’. 
(In case a shareholder is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her 
registered e-mail address). 

 

 

 



i. Voting method for shareholders on i-Vote E-voting portal: 

 
 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 
 Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on investor 

portal. 
 Select event for which you are desire to vote under the dropdown option. 
 Click on “VOTE NOW” option which is appearing on the right hand side top corner of 

the page. 
 Cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option “IN FAVOUR”, “NOT IN FAVOUR” or 

“ABSTAIN” and click on “SUBMIT VOTE”. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click 
“OK” to confirm, else “CANCEL” to modify. Once you confirm, you will not be 
allowed to modify your vote. 

 Once you confirm the vote you will receive confirmation message on display screen 
and also you will receive an email on your registered email id. During the voting 
period, members can login any number of times till they have voted on the 
resolution(s). Once vote on a resolution is casted, it cannot be changed 
subsequently. 

 Shareholder can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under 
“PROFILE” option on investor portal. 

 
ii. Custodian registration process for i-Vote E-Voting Website: 

 You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com 

 Click on “REGISTER” under “CUSTODIAN LOGIN”, to register yourself on Bigshare i- 
Vote e-Voting Platform. 

 Enter all required details and submit. 
 After Successful registration, message will be displayed with “User id and password 

will be sent via email on your registered email id”. 
NOTE: If Custodian have registered on to e-Voting system of 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com and/or voted on an earlier event of any company 
then they can use their existing user id and password to login. 

 If you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘CUSTODIAN LOGIN’ tab 
and further Click on ‘Forgot your password? 

 Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on I AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) 
option and click on ‘RESET. 
(In case a custodian is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her 
registered e-mail address). 

 
iii. Voting method for Custodian on i-Vote E-voting portal: 

 
 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 

 
Investor Mapping: 

 
 First you need to map the investor with your user ID under “DOCUMENTS” option on 

custodian portal. 
o Click on “DOCUMENT TYPE” dropdown option and select document type power 

of attorney (POA). 
o Click on upload document “CHOOSE FILE” and upload power of attorney (POA) 

or board resolution for respective investor and click on “UPLOAD”. 



Note: The power of attorney (POA) or board resolution has to be named as the 
“InvestorID.pdf” (Mention Demat account number as Investor ID.) 

o Your investor is now mapped and you can check the file status on display. 

Investor vote File Upload: 

 To cast your vote select “VOTE FILE UPLOAD” option from left hand side menu on 
custodian portal. 

 Select the Event under dropdown option. 
 Download sample voting file and enter relevant details as required and upload the 

same file under upload document option by clicking on “UPLOAD”. Confirmation 
message will be displayed on the screen and also you can check the file status on 
display (Once vote on a resolution is casted, it cannot be changed subsequently). 

 Custodian can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under 
“PROFILE” option on custodian portal. 
 

Helpdesk for queries regarding e-voting: 

  
 

 
 

   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 (c) Procedure for joining the AGM/EGM through VC/ OAVM: 
 

For shareholder other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat mode & 
physical mode is given below: 

 The Members may attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM at 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com under Investor login by using the e-voting 
credentials (i.e., User ID and Password). 

 After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear. 
 Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on investor 

portal. 
 Select event for which you are desire to attend the AGM under the dropdown option. 
 For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed beside of 

“VIDEO CONFERENCE LINK” option. 
 Members attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
 
 
 

 

Login type 
 

Helpdesk details 
 

Shareholder‘s other than individual 
shareholders holding shares in Demat mode 
& Physical mode 

In case shareholders/ investor have 
any queries regarding E-voting, you 
may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions (‘FAQs’) and i-Vote e-
Voting module available at 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, 
under download section or you can 
email us to 
ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us 
at: 1800 22 54 22. 

 



In case shareholders/ investor have any queries regarding virtual meeting, you may refer 
the Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) available at https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, 
under download section or you can email us to ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 
1800 22 54 22. 

The instructions for Members for e-voting on the day of the AGM are as under:- 
 

 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/ OAVM mode 15 minutes before the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the meeting. The procedure for e-voting on 
the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting. 

 Only those members/shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM 
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and 
are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting 
system in the AGM. 

 
 Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. 

However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 
 
 

Helpdesk for queries regarding virtual meeting: 
 

 (B) Other Instructions: 

 
1. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count 

the votes cast during the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting 
as well as e-voting during the AGM and make, not later than two working days from 

conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in 
favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who 
shall countersign the same. 

 
2. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the 

Company’s website www.aztecfluids.org and on the website of Bigshare 
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com immediately. The Company shall simultaneously 
forward the results to BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed. 



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 
ITEM NO. 4 

 
The members of the Company at its Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 8th November, 2023 
appointed M/s KARMA & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad having Firm’s Registration 
No. 127544W/W1100376 as Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused 
by the resignation of M/s Rachin M Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad to 
hold office till conclusion of 14th Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2024-25. 

 
Accordingly, approval of the Shareholders is being sought for appointment of M/s KARMA & Co. 
LLP, Chartered Accountants, having Firm’s Registration No. 127544W/W1100376 as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the first term of 5 consecutive years commencing from 
conclusion of ensuing 14th Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2024-25 till the 
conclusion of the 19th Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2028-29. 

M/s KARMA & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, having Firm’s Registration No. 
127544W/W1100376 have given their consent for their appointment as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company and has issued certificate confirming that their appointment, if made, will be within 
the limits prescribed under the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') 
and the rules made thereunder. M/s. KARMA & Co., LLP, have confirmed that they are eligible for 
the proposed appointment under the Act, the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949 and the rules or 
regulations made thereunder. As required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, M/s. KARMA & Co., LLP, have confirmed that they hold a valid 
certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of ICAI. 

After evaluating and considering various factors such as industry experience, competency of 
the audit team, efficiency in conduct of audit, independence, etc., the Board of Directors of the 
Company has, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee proposed the 
appointment of M/s. KARMA & Co., LLP, Chartered Accountants having Firm’s Registration No. 
127544W/W1100376, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the first term of five 
consecutive years, who shall hold office from the conclusion of this 14th AGM till the conclusion 
of the 19th AGM of the Company. The remuneration proposed to be paid to the Statutory 
Auditors during their first term would be in line with the industry norms and shall be 
commensurate with the services to be rendered by them during the said tenure. The Board of 
Directors in consultation with the Audit Committee may alter and vary the terms and conditions 
of appointment, including remuneration, in such manner and to such extent as may be mutually 
agreed with the Statutory Auditors. 

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the 
Members by way of an Ordinary Resolution. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are 
interested or concerned, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 



DISCLOSURE UNDER REGULATION 36(5) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015: 

 
Proposed Statutory Audit Fees payable to the 
Statutory Auditors 

Rs 5,00,000/- Per annum 

Terms of Appointment M/s KARMA & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, 
having Firm’s Registration No. 
127544W/W1100376 as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company for the first term of 5 
consecutive years commencing from 
conclusion of ensuing 14th Annual General 
Meeting for the financial year 2024-25 till the 
conclusion of the 19th Annual General 
Meeting for the financial year 2028-29. 

Any material change in the fee payable to New 
Statutory Auditors from that paid to the 
outgoing Auditors along with the rationale for 
such change 

The New Statutory Auditor Fee has been 
increased in comparison to old Auditor as the 
Company has got listed with BSE SME 
Platform during the year. 

Basis of recommendation and Auditor 
Credentials 

M/s KARMA & Co. LLP has 15 Partners and is 
equipped with experienced professional team 
of Chartered Accountants, Company 
Secretaries, and other supporting staff of 
more than 100. The firm is headquartered at 
Ahmedabad and having its offices at Surat, 
Mumbai and Rajkot 

 
ITEM NO. 5 

 
Pursuant to provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made 
thereunder and in terms of applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 consent of the members by way of an ordinary resolution is 
required for approval of material related party transactions proposed to be entered in to by the 
Company with its related party being Jet Inks Private Limited (“Jet Inks”). 

Approval of the members is required for approval of material related party transactions to be 
entered with Jet Inks for purchase or sale or supply of any goods or materials as mentioned in 
Section 188(1)(a) for an amount aggregating the limit up to Rs. 30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty 
Crores Only) per annum that the Company may enter from time to time in one or more tranches 
for a period of 5 years commencing from Financial year 2024-25. 

The said Related Party Transactions shall be carried out on an arm’s length basis and in the 
ordinary course of business of the Company. 



All disclosures prescribed to be given under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 read with SEBI Master 
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated 11.07.2023 are provided in the table 
appended below for the perusal of the members: 

 

Sr. No. Particulars Information 

1 Type, material terms and 
particulars of the proposed 
transaction 

Arrangement for purchase/sale/supply of 
materials/goods as matters mentioned in Section 
188(1) (a) will be entered with related party from 
time to time in one or more tranches for an amount 
not exceeding Rs. 30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty 
Crore Only) per annum that the Company may 
enter from time to time in one or more tranches for 
a period of 5 years commencing from Financial 
Year 2024-25 with related party being Jet Inks 
Private Limited. 

2 Name of the related party and its 
relationship with the listed entity or 
its subsidiary, including nature of 
its concern or interest (financial or 
otherwise); 

Jet Inks Private Limited (“Jet Inks”). 

Mr. Pulin Vaidhya, Managing Director of the 
Company is also a director and shareholder of Jet 
Inks Private Limited. 

3 Tenure of the proposed transaction 
(particular tenure shall be 
specified); 

Matters mentioned in Section 188(1)(a) will be 
entered with related party from time to time in one 
or more tranches for an amount not exceeding Rs. 
30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Crore Only) per 
annum that the Company may enter from time to 
time in one or more tranches for a period of 5 years 
commencing from Financial Year 2024-25. 

4 Value of proposed transaction Not exceeding Rs. 30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty 
Crore Only) per annum 

5 The percentage of the listed entity’s 
annual consolidated turnover, for 
the immediately preceding 
financial year, that is represented 
by the value of the proposed 
transaction (and for a RPT involving 
a subsidiary, such percentage 
calculated on the basis of the 
subsidiary’s annual turnover on a 
standalone basis shall be 
additionally provided); 

This material related party transaction would 
represent 59.71 % of Annual Consolidated 
Turnover of the company. 

6 If the transaction relates to any 
loans, inter-corporate
 deposits, 
advances or investments made or 

Not Applicable 



 given by the listed entity or its 
subsidiary; 

 

7 Justification as to why the RPT is in 
the interest of the Company; 

As members are aware that the Company is in 
business of Manufacturing of inks and ink jet 
printers, in order to facilitate the sale and 
purchase, this is the interest of the Company to 
enter into this related party transaction. 

8 Copy of the valuation or other 
external party report, if any such 
report has been relied upon 

Not Applicable 

9 Percentage of the counter-party’s 
annual consolidated turnover that 
is represented by the value of the 
proposed RPT on a voluntary basis 

75.00% 

10 Any other information relevant or 
important for the members to take 
a decision on the proposed 
transaction. 

Nil 

11 Any advance paid or received for 
the contract or arrangement, if any 

Nil 

12 The manner of determining the 
pricing and other commercial 
terms, both included as part of 
contract and not considered as 
part of the contract; 

The transaction will be done at arm’s length basis 
in ordinary course of the business 

13 Whether all factors relevant to the 
contract have been considered, if 
not, the details of factors not 
considered with the rationale for 
not considering those factors. 

Yes 

 
 

The Audit Committee and Board of the Company have approved the said transactions with the 
related party on 18.04.2024. 

None of the Directors and their relatives except Mr. Pulin Vaidhya, Managing Director and Mrs. 
Amisha Vaidhya, Whole-time Director and their relatives and none of the KMP of the Company 
and their relatives is deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution as set out at item 
no. 5 of this Notice. 

The Board of Directors recommend the resolution set forth in Item no. 5 of the notice for your 
approval as an Ordinary Resolution. 

Further, as per Regulation 23(4) of Listing Regulations, no related party shall vote to approve the 
resolution as set out at item no. 5 of this Notice. 



ITEM NO. 6 
 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made 
thereunder and in terms of applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 consent of the members by way of an ordinary resolution is 
required for approval of material related party transactions proposed to be entered in to by the 
Company with its related party being Fluidtech Corp. 

Approval of the members is required for approval of material related party transactions to be 
entered with Fluidtech Corp for purchase or sale or supply of any goods or materials as mentioned 
in Section 188(1)(a) for an amount aggregating the limit up to Rs. 50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty 
Crores Only) per annum that the Company may enter from time to time in one or more tranches 
for a period of 5 years commencing from Financial year 2024-25. 

The said Related Party Transactions shall be carried out on an arm’s length basis and in the 
ordinary course of business of the Company. 

All disclosures prescribed to be given under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 read with SEBI Master 
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated 11.07.2023 are provided in the table 
appended below for the perusal of the members: 

 

Sr. No. Particulars Information 

1 Type, material terms and 
particulars of the proposed 
transaction 

Arrangement for purchase/sale/supply of 
materials/goods as matters mentioned in Section 
188(1) (a) will be entered with related party from 
time to time in one or more tranches for an amount 
not exceeding Rs. 50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty 
Crore Only) per annum that the Company may 
enter from time to time in one or more tranches for 
a period of 5 years commencing from Financial 
Year 2024-25 with related party being Fluidtech 
Corp. 

2 Name of the related party and its 
relationship with the listed entity or 
its subsidiary, including nature of 
its concern or interest (financial or 
otherwise); 

Fluidtech Corp 

Mr. Pulin Vaidhya, Managing Director of the 
Company and Mrs Amisha Vaidhya, Whole-time 
Director of the Company are the partners in 
Fluidtech Corp. 

3 Tenure of the proposed transaction 
(particular tenure shall be 
specified); 

Matters mentioned in Section 188(1)(a) will be 
entered with related party from time to time in one 
or more tranches for an amount not exceeding Rs. 
50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Crore Only) per 
annum that the Company may enter from time to 
time in one or more tranches for a period of 5 years 
commencing from Financial Year 2024-25. 



4 Value of proposed transaction Not exceeding Rs. 50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty 
Crore Only) per annum 

5 The percentage of the listed entity’s 
annual consolidated turnover, for 
the immediately preceding 
financial year, that is represented 
by the value of the proposed 
transaction (and for a RPT involving 
a subsidiary, such percentage 
calculated on the basis of the 
subsidiary’s annual turnover on a 
standalone basis shall be 
additionally provided); 

This material related party transaction would 
represent 74.85 % of Annual Consolidated 
Turnover of the company. 

6 If the transaction relates to any 
loans, inter-corporate deposits, 
advances or investments made or 
given by the listed entity or its 
subsidiary; 

Not Applicable 

7 Justification as to why the RPT is in 
the interest of the Company; 

As members are aware that the Company is in 
business of Manufacturing of inks and ink jet 
printers, in order to facilitate the sale and 
purchase, this is the interest of the Company to 
enter into this related party transaction. 

8 Copy of the valuation or other 
external party report, if any such 
report has been relied upon 

Not Applicable 

9 Percentage of the counter-party’s 
annual consolidated turnover that 
is represented by the value of the 
proposed RPT on a voluntary basis 

625.00% 

10 Any other information relevant or 
important for the members to take 
a decision on the proposed 
transaction. 

Nil 

11 Any advance paid or received for 
the contract or arrangement, if any 

Nil 

12 The manner of determining the 
pricing and other commercial 
terms, both included as part of 
contract and not considered as 
part of the contract; 

The transaction will be done at arm’s length basis 
in ordinary course of the business 

13 Whether all factors relevant to the 
contract have been considered, if 

Yes 



 not, the details of factors not 
considered with the rationale for 
not considering those factors. 

 

 
The Audit Committee and Board of the Company have approved the said transactions with the 
related party on 18.04.2024. 

None of the Directors and their relatives except Mr. Pulin Vaidhya, Managing Director and Mrs. 
Amisha Vaidhya, Whole-time Director and their relatives and none of the KMP of the Company 
and their relatives is deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution as set out at item 
no. 5 of this Notice. 

The Board of Directors recommend the resolution set forth in Item no. 6 of the notice for your 
approval as an Ordinary Resolution. 

Further, as per Regulation 23(4) of Listing Regulations, no related party shall vote to approve the 
resolution as set out at item no. 5 of this Notice. 

 
ITEM NO. 7 

 
Pursuant to provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made 
thereunder and in terms of applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 consent of the members by way of an ordinary resolution is 
required for approval of material related party transactions proposed to be entered in to by the 
Company with its related party being M/s Axis Druckfarben. 

Approval of the members is required for approval of material related party transactions to be 
entered with M/s Axis Druckfarben for purchase or sale or supply of any goods or materials as 
mentioned in Section 188(1)(a) for an amount aggregating the limit up to Rs. 25,00,00,000/- 
(Rupees Twenty-Five Crores Only) per annum that the Company may enter from time to time in 
one or more tranches for a period of 5 years commencing from financial year 2024-25. 

The said Related Party Transactions shall be carried out on an arm’s length basis and in the 
ordinary course of business of the Company. 

All disclosures prescribed to be given under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 read with SEBI Master 
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated 11.07.2023 are provided in the table 
appended below for the perusal of the members: 

 

Sr. No. Particulars Information 

1 Type, material terms and 
particulars of the proposed 
transaction 

Arrangement for purchase/sale/supply of 
materials/goods as matters mentioned in Section 
188(1) (a) will be entered with related party from 
time to time in one or more tranches for an amount 
not exceeding Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty- 
Five Crore Only) per annum that the Company may 
enter from time to time in one or more tranches for 



  a period of 5 years commencing from Financial 
Year 2024-25 with related party being M/s Axis 
Druckfarben. 

2 Name of the related party and its 
relationship with the listed entity or 
its subsidiary, including nature of 
its concern or interest (financial or 
otherwise); 

M/s Axis Druckfarben 

Mr. Siddharth J. Vakani Proprietor of Axis 
Druckfarben is brother of Ms. Amisha Vaidhya, 
Director of the Company 

3 Tenure of the proposed transaction 
(particular tenure shall be 
specified); 

Matters mentioned in Section 188(1)(a) will be 
entered with related party from time to time in one 
or more tranches for an amount not exceeding Rs. 
25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Five Crore Only) 
per annum that the Company may enter from time 
to time in one or more tranches for a period of 5 
years commencing from Financial Year 2024-25. 

4 Value of proposed transaction Not exceeding Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty- 
Five Crore Only) per annum 

5 The percentage of the listed entity’s 
annual consolidated turnover, for 
the immediately preceding 
financial year, that is represented 
by the value of the proposed 
transaction (and for a RPT involving 
a subsidiary, such percentage 
calculated on the basis of the 
subsidiary’s annual turnover on a 
standalone basis shall be 
additionally provided); 

This material related party transaction would 
represent 37.31 % of Annual Consolidated 
Turnover of the company. 

6 If the transaction relates to any 
loans, inter-corporate deposits, 
advances or investments made or 
given by the listed entity or its 
subsidiary; 

Not Applicable 

7 Justification as to why the RPT is in 
the interest of the Company; 

As members are aware that the Company is in 
business of Manufacturing of inks and ink jet 
printers, in order to facilitate the sale and 
purchase, this is the interest of the Company to 
enter into this related party transaction. 

8 Copy of the valuation or other 
external party report, if any such 
report has been relied upon 

Not Applicable 

9 Percentage of the counter-party’s 
annual consolidated turnover that 

167.00% 



 is represented by the value of the 
proposed RPT on a voluntary basis 

 

10 Any other information relevant or 
important for the members to take 
a decision on the proposed 
transaction. 

Nil 

11 Any advance paid or received for 
the contract or arrangement, if any 

Nil 

12 The manner of determining the 
pricing and other commercial 
terms, both included as part of 
contract and not considered as 
part of the contract; 

The transaction will be done at arm’s length basis 
in ordinary course of the business 

13 Whether all factors relevant to the 
contract have been considered, if 
not, the details of factors not 
considered with the rationale for 
not considering those factors. 

Yes 

 
The Audit Committee and Board of the Company have approved the said transactions with the 
related party on 18.04.2024. 

None of the Directors and their relatives except Mr. Pulin Vaidhya, Managing Director and Mrs. 
Amisha Vaidhya, Whole-time Director and their relatives and none of the KMP of the Company 
and their relatives is deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution as set out at item 
no. 5 of this Notice. 

The Board of Directors recommend the resolution set forth in Item no. 6 of the notice for your 
approval as an Ordinary Resolution. 

Further, as per Regulation 23(4) of Listing Regulations, no related party shall vote to approve the 
resolution as set out at item no. 5 of this Notice. 

 

 
Place: Ahmedabad By Order of the Board 
Date: 24.08.2024 

SD/- 
 

USHMA DUDANI 
Company Secretary 

Membership No. 21452 



Annexure-1 
 

 
In terms of Regulation 36(3) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standard on General 
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and notified by Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs certain disclosures are required with respect to Directors seeking 
appointment/re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting which is mentioned 
below: 

 

 
Name of Director Mr. Pulin Kumudchandra Vaidhya 

DIN 03012651 

Date of Birth 26/11/1978 

Age of Director 45 

Date of First Appointment/Re-appointment 28/04/2010 

Qualification Diploma in Business Management and 
Diploma in Electrical Engineering 

Experience 20 Years 

Nature of Expertise in specific functional 
area 

He has an overall experience of more than 
10 years in the field of Chemical Industries. 

Terms and Conditions of Appointment Managing Director, liable to retire by 
rotation 

Remuneration sought to be paid Nil 

Remuneration last drawn by such person 
(including Sitting Fees) 

Rs. 2 Crore p.a. 

Designation Managing Director 

Disclosure of relationship between Directors 
Inter-se 

Mr. Pulin Vaidhya is the Husband of Mrs. 
Amisha Vaidhya and Son of Mr. 
Kumudchandra Vaidhya, Directors of the 
Company 

Disclosure of relationship of Directors with 
Manager and KMP of the Company 

Nil 

Names of listed entities in which the person 
also holds the directorship and the 
membership of Committees of the board 

Nil 



Names of listed entities from which the 
person has resigned in the past three years 

Nil 

Names of other Companies in which person 
holds Directorship 

Jet Inks Private Limited 

Names of membership and Chairman of the 
committees of the other Companies 

Nil 

Number of shares held in the Company 74,99,700 

No. of Board Meetings attended during the 
year 

11 

 
Place: Ahmedabad By Order of the Board 
Date: 24.08.2024 

SD/- 
 

USHMA DUDANI 
Company Secretary 

Membership No. 21452 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 
To 
The Members, 
Aztec Fluids & Machinery Limited 

Your directors have pleasure in submitting this 14th Annual Report of the Company together with 
the Audited Statements of Accounts for the period ended 31st March, 2024. 

 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS: 
 

 
(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 

Revenue from operations 6768.02 5426.11 
Profit before Interest, Depreciation, Managerial 
Remuneration, Taxation 

1022.95 619.71 

Less: Interest 48.75 32.15 

Depreciation 30.49 29.66 

MD’s Remuneration 129.00 129.00 

Taxation 209.10 110.00 

Profit before giving the effect of DTA/DTL 605.61 318.90 

Less: Deferred Tax Liability/ (Assets) (6.76) (0.32) 

Less: DTL on Profit of W/off of Asset in B/A 0.00 0.00 

Less: Short/(Excess) Provision of Earlier Year (1.04) 0.00 

Profit for the year 613.41 319.22 

Less: Provision For Dividend 00.00 30.00 

Balance Bought Forward from Previous year 1347.56 1260.33 

Less: Reversal of DTA due to change of income tax 
rate 

0.00 0.00 

Add : Excess Provision of Income Tax 1.04 0.40 

Less: Bonus shares issued 800.00 199.00 

Less: Other Adjustments 21.42 2.99 

Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 1139.55 1347.56 
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2. REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS: 

The continuous efforts of management led to fruitful and positive results. During the year under 
review, Revenue from Operations has gone up to Rs 6768.02 Lacs against Rs. 5426.11 Lacs in 
the previous year. As a result, the profit before interest, depreciation, managerial remuneration, 
taxation has reached a level of the figures which has gone up to Rs. 1022.95 Lacs against Rs. 
619.71 for the previous year. However, the profit for the year has gone up to Rs. 613.41 Lacs 
against Rs. 319.22 for the previous year mainly due to increase of non-operating expense or 
balance written off. After adjusting all amounts balance of Rs 1139.55 Lacs has been carried 
forward to the next year. 

 
Your Directors are making all the possible efforts to expand the business of the company, optimize 
expenses and hereby hope to make better performance in the years to come. 

 
3. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

 
During the year under review, Company has not changed it’s nature of business of the Company. 

 
4. DIVIDEND 

The Board of Directors of the Company has declared and paid interim Dividend of Rs. 15 per 
equity share i.e. 150% on face value of Rs. 10/- each during the financial year 2023-24. The 
Board proposed to ratify the said interim dividend to the shareholders of the Company at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 
5. RESERVES 

 
During the financial year 2023-24, the Board does not propose to transfer any amount to the 
Reserves. 

6. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
 

The particulars of loans and investments have been disclosed in the financial statements. 
However, during the year under review Company has not given any guarantee or security. 

 
7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
During the year under review, the Company has entered into an agreements/ arrangement with 
related parties. The details of the same is mentioned in Form AOC-2 which is enclosed as 
Annexure-1 to this Director’s report. 

 
8. LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGE: 

After the closure of financial year, in order to achieve the benefits of listing the Equity Shares on 
the Stock Exchange and to avail benefit of more liquidity and visibility in the shares of your 
Company as
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well as provide a public market for the equity shares in India, the shares of the Company were 
listed on SME Platform of BSE Limited. Company has issued 36,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- 
each at a premium of Rs. 57/- per share through IPO. The said equity shares of the Company 
were traded on the stock exchange with effect from 17th May, 2024. 

 
9. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 

COMPANY 

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position 
of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to 
which the financial statements relate and the date of the report. 

 
10. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 

 
The Company has an adequate system of internal financial control procedures which is 
commensurate with the size and nature of business. However, Company has not appointed 
Internal Auditor as the said provisions are not applicable to the Company. 

 
11. DEPOSITS 

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits from public during the year under 
review. 

 
12. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

 
Pursuant to Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Independent Directors of the Company 
has submitted declarations confirming the compliance of the conditions of the independence 
stipulated in the aforesaid section read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
 

13.  DETAILS OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE, NOMINATION AND 
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE. 

 
i) AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Section 
177 of the Companies Act, 2013 as on 15th December, 2023. The composition of audit 
committee is given below: 

 
Name Category 

Mr. Ashish Shah Independent, Non- Executive 
Member Chairman 

Mr. Milan Desai Independent, non-executive 

Mr. Pulin Vaidhya Executive Director-Member, 
Managing Director 
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Audit Committee Meetings were not held during the year. 

 
ii) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the 
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 as on 15th December, 2023. The 
composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is given below: 

 
Name Category 

Mr. Ashish Shah Independent, Non- Executive 
Director, Chairman 

Mr. Milan Desai Independent, Non-Executive 
Director 

Mr. Kumudchandra Vaidhya Non-Executive Director 

 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings were not held during the year. 

iii) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the 
provisions of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 as on 15th December, 2023. The 
composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee is given below: 

 
Name Category 

Mr. Milan Desai Independent, Non- Executive 
Director, Chairman 

Mr. Ashish Shah Independent, Non-Executive 
Director 

Mr. Pulin Vaidhya Executive Director-Member, 
Managing Director 

 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings were not held during the year. 

14. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) INITIATIVES 
 

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility 
initiatives as the said provisions are not applicable to the Company. 

15. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) 

 
Mr. Pulin Vaidhya (DIN: 03012651), Managing Director of the Company will retire by rotation at 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for reappointment. 
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During the year Mr. Ashish Anantray Shah was appointed as an Additional Independent Director 
on 15th December, 2023, Mr. Milan Desai was appointed as an Additional Independent Director 
on 15th December, 2023 as per the requirement of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
approval of the shareholders is required to be obtained in the general meeting of the Company. 
Necessary resolutions were therefore proposed in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 
06th January, 2024 to change in designation from Additional Independent Director to 
Independent Director of the Company for their first term of 5 consecutive years from 15th 
December, 2023 to 14th December, 2028. 

 
Mr. Kumudchandra Bhawandas Vaidya was appointed as an Additional Director on 06th 
November, 2023 necessary resolutions was therefore proposed in the Extra-Ordinary General 
Meeting held on 08th November, 2023 to change in designation from Additional Director to 
Director of the Company and Mr. Harsh Tejeenath Rawal was appointed as a Chief Financial 
Officer on 25th November, 2023. Further Ms. Rekha Jhanwar was appointed as Company 
Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 15th December, 2023 and after the closure of financial year she 
has resigned as a Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 2nd July, 2024. 

After the closure of the financial year Ms. Ushma Dudani having membership no. 21452 was 
appointed as a Company Secretary of the Company. 

There being no other changes in Directorship and KMP during the year under review. 
 
16. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, 
to the best of their knowledge and ability confirm and state that – 

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

ii. The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the 
loss of the company for that period; 

iii. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv. The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis; 
v. The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 

that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 
vi. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

17. APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY: 
The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, framed 
a policy and defined the scope of the Committee which is in line with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The policy is available on Company’s website at www.aztecindia.org and 
weblink for the same is http://aztecindia/for-appointment-of-directors-kmp-and-senior- 
management-employees.pdf 
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18. STATUTORY AUDITORS 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there 
under, M/s. K A R M A & CO. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (FRN : 127544W/W1100376) were 
appointed as statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy created due to 
resignation of M/s. Rachin M. Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants as a Statutory Auditors of the 
Company at the Extra- ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 08th November, 2023 
and hold the office till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held for the financial 
year 2023 - 24. Your Directors proposed the members of the Company to appoint M/s. K A R M A 
& CO. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (FRN : 127544W/W1100376) as a Statutory Auditors of the 
Company for a period of 5 consecutive years at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the 
Company. 

 
19. COMMENT ON AUDITORS’ REPORT 

The Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders does not contain any qualification. There were 
no 
reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report. 

20. ANNUAL RETURN 

As per provisions of Section 92(3) Annual Return of the Company for the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2024 is placed on the website of the Company and the same can be accessed through 
https://www.aztecfluids.com/ www.aztecindia.org . 

 
21. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES / JOINT VENTURE 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company does not have any 
subsidiary/ joint ventures/associate companies during the financial year under review. 

 
22. PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES 

AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES INCLUDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENT 

Since the Company does not have any Subsidiary / Joint Ventures / Associate Concerns, no 
financial position of such concern(s) are required to be included in the financial statement. 

 
23. BOARD MEETINGS: 
 

The Board of Directors met 11 (Eleven) times during the year. The details of the meeting are 
as below: 

Sr. No. Date of meeting Sr. No. Date of meeting 
1. 25.04.2023 2. 16.05.2023 
3. 01.08.2023 4. 24.08.2023 

5. 05.09.2023 6. 09.09.2023 
7. 05.10.2023 8. 06.11.2023 
9. 25.11.2023 10. 15.12.2023 
11. 25.01.2024   
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24. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 

There are no significant and material orders passed by Regulators, Courts or Tribunals impacting 
the going concern status and company’s operations in future. 

 
25. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

The Company has no activity pertaining to energy conservation or technology absorption. Details 
of foreign exchange earnings and outgo are as follows: 

Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: 
 

Foreign Exchange Earning: Rs. 5,41,16,092 
Foreign Exchange Outgo : Rs. 35,09,00,431.80 

 
 
26. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Board is of the opinion that no risk element exists which adversely affects the business of 
the Company and therefore, Company has not developed Risk Management Policy. 

 
27. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AS SPECIFIED BY THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT 

UNDER SUB SECTION (1) OF SECTION 148 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND STATUS OF 
THE SAME: 

 
The provisions regarding maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government 
under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
Company. 

 
28.  CONSTITUTION OF INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE UNDER THE SEXUAL 

HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) 
ACT, 2013: 

The provisions regarding establishment of Internal Complaint Committee under the Sexual 
Harassment of Woman at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 are 
not applicable to the Company. However, your directors ensure safety of women at work place. 

 
29. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 
 

During the year under review, the Company has not made any application before the National 
Company Law Tribunal under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 for recovery of 
outstanding loans against customer and there is no pending proceeding against the Company 
under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
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30. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME 
OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE 
BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF DURING THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR: 

 
It is not applicable to the Company, during the financial year. 

 
31. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

Your Directors confirm that, Company complies with applicable mandatory secretarial 
standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

32. VIGIL MECHANISM: 

During the year under review, Company has not established vigil mechanism system as the said 
provisions are not applicable to the Company. 

 
 
33. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION (12) OF 

SECTION 143 OTHAR THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT: 

During the year under review, no frauds were reported by the auditor to the board. 

 
34. INCREASE IN SHARE CAPITAL: 

 
 

During the financial year Company has increased it’s Authorized Share Capital from Rs. 2 Crores 
to Rs 14 Crores and also increased it’s issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital from Rs. 2 
Crores to Rs 10 Crores by way of issuance of 80,00,000 Bonus Shares to the shareholders of the 
Company. 

 
35. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
Your Directors are thankful to the Bankers and concerned government departments / agencies 
for the co-operation and support extended by them to the Company throughout the year. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 24.08.2024 

SD/- 

PULIN VAIDHYA 

SD/- 

AMISHA VAIDHYA 
 MANAGING DIRECTOR 

DIN: 03012651 
WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR 

     DIN: 03077466 
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ANNEXURE-1 

 
Form No. AOC-2 

 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of 

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the 
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso 
thereto. 

 
1.  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length 
basis: 

 
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Amisha Vaidhya 

(Director) 

 
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Rent 

 
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: 01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024 

 
(d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if 

any: Rent Payment upto Rs 12,00,000/- p.a. 

 
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: For 

utilization of Premises and smooth functioning,it is necessary to use this office 
space. 

 
(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: 25.04.2023 

 
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A. 

 
(h) Date on which the ordinaryresolution was passed in general meeting as required 

under first proviso to section 188: N.A. 
 

 
2.  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length 
basis: 

 
(c) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Pulin Vaidhya 

(Director) 

 
(d) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Rent 

 
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: 01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024 

 
 

 



(d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if 
any: Rent Payment upto Rs 12,00,000/- p.a. 

 
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: For 

utilization of Premises and smooth functioning, it is necessary to use this office 
space. 

 
(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: 25.04.2023 

 
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A. 

 
(h) Date on which the ordinaryresolution was passed in general meeting as required 

under first proviso to section 188: N.A. 
 

 
3.  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length 
basis: 

 
(e) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Axis Druckfarben LLP, 

Brother of Director of the Company is a designated partner in this LLP. 

 
(f) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Sale and Purchase 

 
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: 01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024 

 
(d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if 

any: Purchase and Sale of materials and goods upto Rs 25 Crores p.a. 

 
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: For 

competitive rates. 

 
(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: 25.04.2023 

 
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A. 

 
(h) Date on which the ordinaryresolution was passed in general meeting as required 

under first proviso to section 188: N.A. 
 

 
4.  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length 
basis: 

 
(g) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Fluidtech Corp, 

Director of the Company is a partner in this partnership firm. 

 
(h) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Purchase 

 
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: 01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024 



(d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if 
any: Purchase and Sale of materials and goods upto Rs 6 Crores p.a. 

 
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: For 

competitive rates. 

 
(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: 25.04.2023 

 
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A. 

 
(h) Date on which the ordinary resolution was passed in general meeting as required 

under first proviso to section 188: N.A. 

 
5.  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length 
basis: 

 
(i) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Kumudchandra 

Vaidhya (Director’s Father) 

 
(j) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Professional fees 

 
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: 01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024 

 
(d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if 

any: Fee Upto 12 Lacs per annum 

 
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: For 

his expertise and knowledge. 

 
(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: 25.04.2023 

 
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A. 

 
(h) Date on which the ordinary resolution was passed in general meeting as required 

under first proviso to section 188: N.A. 
 

 
6.  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length 
basis: 

 
(k) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Fluidtech Corp, 

Director of the Company is a partner in this partnership firm. 

 
(l) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Rental income 

 
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: 01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024 

 



(d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if 
any: Upto 5 Lacs per annum 

 
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: In the 

best interest of the Company. 

 
(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: 25.04.2023 

 
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A. 

 
(h) Date on which the ordinary resolution was passed in general meeting as required 

under first proviso to section 188: N.A. 
 

 
7.  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length 
basis: 

 
(m) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Jet Inks Private 

Limited. Director of the Company is a Director in that Company. 

 
(n) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Sale of Goods 

 
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: 01/04/2023 to 31/03/2024 

 
(d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if 

any: Amount upto 2 Crores per annum 

 
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: For 

competitive rates. 

 
(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: 25.04.2023 

 
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A. 

 
(h) Date on which the ordinary resolution was passed in general meeting as required 

under first proviso to section 188: N.A. 

 
2.  Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length 
basis: Not Applicable 

 
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: 
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: 

 
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: 

 
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the 

value, if any: . 

 



(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 

 
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: 

 
 

For, Aztec Fluids & Machinery Limited 
 
 
 

Place: Ahmedabad SD/- SD/- 
Date: 24-08-2024 

 
PULIN VAIDHYA   AMISHA VAIDHYA 
MANAGINGDIRECTOR  WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR 
DIN: 03012651                                       DIN: 03077466 

 
 



Global Economy Overview 

 

As of the reporƟng period ending mid-2024, the global economic landscape presents a complex set of 
opportuniƟes and challenges that may significantly impact business operaƟons and financial 
performance across various sectors. According to the InternaƟonal Monetary Fund's (IMF) July 2024 
World Economic Outlook, global growth is projected at 3.2% for 2024 and 3.3% for 2025. These 
forecasts suggest a period of moderate expansion, albeit with notable regional variaƟons and 
persistent economic headwinds. 

 

Key Economic Indicators and Trends 

InflaƟon remains a primary concern across major economies, parƟcularly in the services sector. This 
persistent inflaƟonary pressure has led to prolonged periods of elevated interest rates in several key 
markets.  

Global trade volumes demonstrated resilience in early 2024, primarily driven by strong performance 
in Asian markets, especially in the technology sector. However, this overall posiƟve trend masks 
significant regional dispariƟes that warrant close monitoring: 

 In the United States, economic growth has decelerated more rapidly than anƟcipated, 
characterized by weakening consumer demand and an unfavorable trade balance. 

 European markets have shown signs of recovery, parƟcularly in the services sector, which may 
present new opportuniƟes for expansion strategies. 

 China has experienced a notable upƟck in domesƟc consumpƟon, potenƟally offseƫng 
challenges in other regions. 

 

Financial Market CondiƟons 

Despite the complex macroeconomic environment, global financial condiƟons remain generally 
supporƟve, as evidenced by strong corporate valuaƟons. However, there is an upward trend in long-
term yields, which may impact financing strategies and investment decisions in the coming fiscal year. 

Forward-Looking Economic Outlook 

Looking ahead, a gradual convergence of growth rates among advanced economies is anƟcipated, with 
the United States and Europe slowly closing their respecƟve output gaps. This trend may influence 
market prioriƟzaƟon and resource allocaƟon decisions in the near to medium term. 

Emerging markets, parƟcularly in Asia, are expected to outperform in terms of growth, driven by robust 
domesƟc demand and export performance. This outlook aligns with the strategic focus many 
companies have on expanding their presence in these high-potenƟal markets. 

 

(Source: hƩps://www.imf.org/-/media/Files/PublicaƟons/WEO/2024/Update/July/English/text.ashx) 



India's Economic Trajectory 

 

As of 2024, India's economy stands out as a beacon of resilience amidst global economic turbulence. 
The naƟon has defied expectaƟons, posƟng an impressive 8.2% real GDP growth in the fiscal year 2023-
24. This robust performance, exceeding the 8% threshold in three out of four quarters, stems from a 
potent combinaƟon of unwavering consumer demand and escalaƟng investment trends. Analysts 
project this momentum to conƟnue, with growth forecasts for 2024-25 ranging between 6.5% and 7%, 
underscoring India's economic vitality despite worldwide uncertainƟes. 

 

Sectoral Dynamics and Industrial Advancements 

India's economic landscape in 2024 showcases a diverse blend of sectors contribuƟng to its Gross Value 
Added (GVA). The services sector leads the charge, accounƟng for 54.7% of GVA, followed by industry 
at 27.6% and agriculture at 17.7%. Notably, the industrial realm has experienced a renaissance, with 
manufacturing and construcƟon both achieving a remarkable 9.9% growth. This industrial surge is 
aƩributed to favorable input costs and strong domesƟc market demand. Concurrently, the services 
sector has flourished, driven by heightened acƟvity in finance, professional services, and trade. 

 

Economic Indicators and Fiscal Prudence 

Key economic metrics paint a picture of stability and progress. InflaƟon, a perennial concern for 
emerging economies, has moderated to 5.4% in FY24, down from 6.7% in the previous year. This 
improvement reflects the efficacy of government intervenƟons and the Reserve Bank of India's 
monetary policy adjustments. Fiscal management has also seen posiƟve strides, with the Union 
Government's fiscal deficit narrowing to 5.6% of GDP in FY24, showcasing commitment to financial 
discipline. Investment trends, as indicated by Gross Fixed Capital FormaƟon, remain bullish, with 
private sector investments surging by 19.8% in FY23. 

 

Financial Sector Health and External Stability 

The banking sector's robustness is evident in the declining Gross Non-Performing Assets raƟo, which 
hit a 12-year low of 2.8% in March 2024. This improved asset quality posiƟons banks well to fuel the 
growing appeƟte for credit across industrial and personal segments. On the internaƟonal front, India's 
external posiƟon remains solid, with foreign exchange reserves sufficient to cover 11 months of 
projected imports, providing a cushion against global economic fluctuaƟons. 

 

Socio-Economic Progress and Structural Changes 

India's economic narraƟve is increasingly intertwined with its social development agenda. The Direct 
Benefit Transfer system has revoluƟonized welfare distribuƟon, channeling over ₹36.9 lakh crore since 
its incepƟon in 2013, enhancing fiscal efficiency and reducing leakages. A notable societal shiŌ is the 
surge in female labor force parƟcipaƟon, rising from 23.3% in 2017-18 to 37% in 2022-23, largely 
propelled by increased engagement of rural women in the workforce. 



 

Future Outlook and PotenƟal Hurdles 

As India charts its economic course, the outlook remains predominantly posiƟve, buoyed by strong 
domesƟc growth drivers and a concerted focus on infrastructure and investment. However, the path 
is not without potenƟal obstacles. GeopoliƟcal tensions loom as a threat, capable of disrupƟng supply 
chains, influencing commodity prices, and potenƟally reigniƟng inflaƟonary pressures. The global 
trade landscape for 2024 presents a mixed picture, with expectaƟons of a recovery in merchandise 
trade following a contracƟon in the previous year. 

 

(Source: hƩps://pib.gov.in/PressReleasePage.aspx?PRID=2034973)



Global Coding and Marking SoluƟons Industry Overview: 

 

  

 

According to a report by Mordor Intelligence, the global coding and marking soluƟons market is 
projected to grow at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 5.64% from 2024 to 2029. These 
soluƟons have become essenƟal in modern manufacturing and supply chain operaƟons across various 
industries. They are vital for ensuring product traceability, meeƟng regulatory requirements, and 
safeguarding brand integrity. As technological advancements and shiŌing consumer demands drive 
the market forward, the coding and marking soluƟons sector is undergoing substanƟal growth and 
transformaƟon. 

 

Industry ApplicaƟons 

The applicaƟon of coding and marking soluƟons spans various industries, with the food and beverage 
sector remaining the largest market. This industry's demand is driven by strict labeling regulaƟons for 
allergens, nutriƟonal informaƟon, and expiraƟon dates, as well as the need for batch and lot coding 
for recall management. The pharmaceuƟcal and healthcare sector requires high-precision coding for 
serializaƟon to combat counterfeiƟng, compliance with track-and-trace regulaƟons, and conveying 
paƟent safety informaƟon. In the consumer electronics industry, coding and marking focus on serial 
number and IMEI coding, product authenƟcaƟon, and warranty informaƟon. 

 

Technological Advancements 

Technological advancements are shaping the future of coding and marking soluƟons. ConƟnuous Inkjet 
(CIJ) technology remains a cornerstone in the industry, valued for its versaƟlity and high-speed prinƟng 
capabiliƟes. Recent improvements have focused on enhancing print quality and resoluƟon, extending 
the range of compaƟble substrates, and developing eco-friendly inks. Laser coding systems are gaining 
tracƟon due to their precision and ability to create permanent marks, with innovaƟons including 
higher-power lasers for faster coding speeds and improved beam steering for more complex designs. 



Thermal Transfer OverprinƟng (TTO) technology is evolving to meet the demands of flexible packaging, 
with developments in longer-lasƟng printheads and solvent-free ribbon formulaƟons. 

 

Growth Drivers 

The growth of this market is propelled by several key factors. Stringent regulaƟons across industries, 
parƟcularly in food & beverage and pharmaceuƟcals, necessitate clear and accurate product labeling. 
There's also an increasing consumer demand for transparency, with growing interest in product origins, 
ingredients, and manufacturing processes. This trend drives the need for detailed product informaƟon, 
which coding and marking soluƟons can efficiently provide. Furthermore, these soluƟons enhance 
supply chain efficiency by improving traceability throughout the process, leading to beƩer inventory 
management and reduced errors. Advanced coding technologies also play a vital role in brand 
protecƟon, helping to combat counterfeiƟng and safeguard brand integrity. 

 

Future Trends and Outlook 

Looking to the future, several trends are likely to shape the coding and marking soluƟons market. The 
integraƟon of Internet of Things (IoT) technology is increasing the connecƟvity of coding and marking 
systems with broader manufacturing and supply chain management systems. ArƟficial Intelligence and 
Machine Learning are being implemented for predicƟve maintenance and automaƟc opƟmizaƟon of 
coding parameters. There's a growing focus on sustainability, with the development of more 
environmentally friendly inks and energy-efficient coding technologies. The market is also seeing 
increased demand for variable data prinƟng to support personalized markeƟng iniƟaƟves, and the 
emergence of mobile-based soluƟons, such as smartphone-readable codes for enhanced consumer 
engagement and product authenƟcaƟon. 

 

 
 

(Source: hƩps://www.mordorintelligence.com/industry-reports/global-coding-and-marking-
soluƟons-market)  



Indian Coding and Marking Systems Market Overview: 

 

The Indian coding and marking systems market is predicted to grow at 8.9% CAGR during the forecast 
period (2025–2030) to reach USD 0.64 billion by 2030. The Indian market is primarily driven by the 
extensive growth in the manufacturing sector, packaging industry, and pharmaceuƟcal industry, and 
the increasing need for product authenƟcaƟon and brand protecƟon. 

 

Market SegmentaƟon 

Based on technology, the coding and marking systems market is categorized into conƟnuous inkjet, 
thermal transfer overprinƟng, thermal inkjet, drop on demand, print & apply labelers, laser coding & 
marking, and valve jet & hot melt inkjet, of which conƟnuous inkjet held the largest share in the Indian 
coding and marking systems market. The market's highest share of the conƟnuous inkjet category is 
due to the high prinƟng speed, ease of installaƟon, and cost-effecƟveness. 

The coding and marking systems market is categorized into food and beverages, electrical and 
electronics, automoƟve and aerospace, chemicals, healthcare, and others based on end users. The 
food and beverage industry is esƟmated to be the largest end-user category in the market in 2023. 
This is primarily due to the strict government regulaƟons towards marking informaƟon on food and 
beverage products. 

 

Importance of Coding and marking in Manufacturing and LogisƟcs 

Coding and marking are considered to be the most vital part of the manufacturing and logisƟcs process 
in consumer and industrial products. The system is extensively being used to print the details on the 
product and packaging relaƟng to manufacturing date, lot size, expiry date, and other details to 
disperse authenƟc informaƟon to the customers. Moreover, these systems enable the manufacturers 
to track the products along with the enhanced focus of the manufacturers towards safety concerns, 
quality assurance of the product, and brand establishment. 

 

Growth Drivers 

The increasing manufacturing sector, pharmaceuƟcal sector, food and beverages industry, increasing 
need for product authenƟcaƟon and brand protecƟon, and increasing packaging industry are the major 
factors contribuƟng to the growth of the Indian coding and marking systems market. The government 
of India is making strict norms for the manufacturer to show the product-related details on the 
packaging, such as price, manufacturing and expiry dates, batch number, ingredient-related 
informaƟon, and other related informaƟon, for the end users. Coding and marking help in the 
idenƟficaƟon and tracking of products, thus, in turn, increasing the growth of the Indian coding and 
marking systems market. 

 

 

 



Impact of Changing Consumer Lifestyles 

Increasing urbanizaƟon and busy lifestyles have led to an increase in the consumpƟon of packaged 
foods, packaged fruit juice, canned foods, frozen foods, boƩled water, and others which has boosted 
the growth of the packaged food and beverage industries. This increases the demand for coding and 
marking systems in the food and beverages industry, which has posiƟvely impacted the growth of the 
Indian market. 

 

(Source: hƩps://www.vynzresearch.com/chemicals-materials/india-coding-and-marking-systems-
market) 

 

 

  



Leveraging Cross-Industry Growth  

 

Beauty and Personal Care 

The beauty and personal care industry in India is projected to grow at a CAGR of approximately 
11.5% from 2024 to 2030. This sector is experiencing significant growth across various categories, 
including color cosmeƟcs, fragrances, hair care, and skincare. The expansion is primarily driven by 
rising median household incomes and increased accessibility to beauty products. Notably, the male 
grooming market is also expanding, contribuƟng to the industry's overall growth. 

 

(Source: hƩps://www.marknteladvisors.com/research-library/india-beauty-and-personal-care-
market.html)  

 

Food and Beverages 

India's food and beverages market, valued at US$ 332 billion in 2023, is expected to reach US$ 
691.47 billion by 2030, growing at a CAGR of 11.05% from 2024 to 2030. This sector is recognized as 
the fastest-growing industry in India, supported by the country's diverse raw material base and rich 
culinary tradiƟons. 

 

(Source: hƩps://www.maximizemarketresearch.com/market-report/indian-food-and-beverages-
market/29426/ ) 

 

PharmaceuƟcals 

The Indian pharmaceuƟcal industry is on a rapid growth trajectory, with expectaƟons to reach US$ 65 
billion by 2024 and US$ 130 billion by 2030. It is projected to consƟtute about 13% of the global 
pharmaceuƟcal market. The government has set an ambiƟous target for the medical devices 
industry, aiming to grow it from its current US$ 11 billion valuaƟon to US$ 50 billion by 2030. 

 

(Source: hƩps://www.ibef.org/industry/pharmaceuƟcal-india) 

 

ConstrucƟon Materials 

The global construcƟon materials market, valued at USD 1,320.01 billion in 2023, is projected to 
grow at a CAGR of 3.9% from 2024 to 2032. Asia Pacific dominates this market with a 48.44% share 
as of 2023. The growth in this sector is primarily driven by increased infrastructure spending and 
rising demand for residenƟal properƟes. 

 

(Source: hƩps://www.fortunebusinessinsights.com/construcƟon-materials-market-107415) 



 

Wire and Cable 

The global wire and cable market, valued at USD 240.3 billion in 2023, is expected to grow at a CAGR 
of 8.1% from 2024 to 2032. This growth is fueled by infrastructure upgrades, expansion in the 
automoƟve sector, and increasing applicaƟons in IT and telecommunicaƟons. 

 

(Source: hƩps://www.gminsights.com/industry-analysis/wire-and-cable-market)  

 

AutomoƟve Electronics 

India's automoƟve electronics market is projected to grow at a CAGR of 8.7% from 2024 to 2030. The 
Asia Pacific region leads this market with a 41.4% share as of 2023. The growth is driven by 
increasing demand for advanced electronics and safety features in vehicles. 

 

(Source: hƩps://www.grandviewresearch.com/industry-analysis/automoƟve-electronics-
industry#:~:text=India%20automoƟve%20electronics%20market%20is,driver%20assistance%20syste
ms%20(ADAS)) 

 

Agrochemicals 

The Indian agrochemicals market is expected to see a significant increase of USD 12.90 billion, 
growing at a CAGR of 10.17% between 2023 and 2028. This growth is aƩributed to factors such as 
increasing herbicide use, growing demand, and technological improvements in agriculture. 

 

(Source: hƩps://www.technavio.com/report/agrochemicals-market-industry-
analysis#:~:text=The%20India%20Agrochemicals%20Market%20size,10.17%25%20between%202023
%20and%202028.)  

 

Petrochemicals 

The petrochemical industry is expected to account for one-third of global oil demand growth by 
2030, increasing to nearly half by 2050. India's chemical and petrochemical industry is projected to 
reach USD 300 billion by 2025. The overall petroleum industry in India is forecast to grow at a CAGR 
of 9-10% over the next two decades, driven by increasing populaƟon, technological advancements, 
and enhanced awareness about petrochemical products. 

 

(Source: hƩps://www.hmel.in/blog/future-of-
petrochemicals#:~:text=India's%20chemical%20and%20petrochemical%20industry,and%20touch%20
USD%201%20trillion.) 

  



Company Overview 

 

Established in 2010, Aztec Fluids & Machinery Limited, headquartered in Ahmedabad, Gujarat, has 
emerged as a leading provider of advanced coding and marking soluƟons in India. We specialize in 
offering state-of-the-art equipment that enables businesses to print essenƟal variable informaƟon—
such as batch numbers, dates, prices, logos, barcodes, and promoƟonal codes—on a wide array of 
products and packaging materials. With a robust commitment to innovaƟon, quality, and customer 
saƟsfacƟon, we have posiƟoned ourselves as a trusted partner across diverse industries. 

 

Product Porƞolio and Technological ExperƟse 

Our comprehensive product porƞolio is designed to meet the diverse needs of various industries, 
offering a range of printers, inks, and consumable items: 

 Printers: Our suite of printers includes ConƟnuous Inkjet Printers (CIJ), Thermal Transfer Over 
Printers (TTO), Drop on Demand Printers (DOD), NIJ (piezoelectric) Printers, and Laser 
Printers. These printers are tailored to address specific industrial applicaƟons, such as high-
speed coding, permanent marking, and high-contrast prinƟng across different substrates. For 
example, CIJ printers are ideal for coding on fast-moving producƟon lines in sectors like food 
and beverages, pharmaceuƟcals, and automoƟve. In contrast, laser printers, uƟlizing both 
CO2 and fiber technologies, provide permanent marking soluƟons suitable for high-speed 
beverage lines and automoƟve parts. 

 Printer Inks: Our ink soluƟons cater to a wide range of applicaƟons, including retort inks for 
high-temperature processes, invisible inks for discreet marking, UV inks for high-contrast 
finishes under UV light, and various other specialty inks designed for challenging 
environments. Each formulaƟon is craŌed to ensure reliability, durability, and legibility under 
specific condiƟons, enhancing the versaƟlity of our printers. 

 Consumable Items: To ensure opƟmal printer performance and longevity, we offer a range of 
consumables such as makeup fluids and cleaning solvents. Our makeup fluids maintain the 
consistency of inks, even in varying environmental condiƟons, while our cleaning solvents 
ensure the smooth operaƟon of printers by prevenƟng nozzle clogging and maintaining print 
quality. 

 

Diverse Industry ApplicaƟons 

Our coding and marking soluƟons cater to a diverse range of industries, including personal care, food 
and beverages, pharmaceuƟcals, construcƟon materials, electronics, automoƟve, agrochemicals, and 
petrochemicals. Our technology empowers clients to ensure product traceability, meet regulatory 
requirements, and enhance brand visibility. We have evolved from being a convenƟonal product-
selling company to becoming a comprehensive soluƟon provider. Our focus is on offering tailored 
soluƟons for tracking, tracing, and quality control to meet our customers' specific needs and 
demands. 

 



Strategic Partnerships and Market Reach 

As the exclusive distributor for Lead Tech (Zhuhai) Electronic Co. Ltd., in India, Sri Lanka, Nepal, 
Bhutan, Bangladesh, Kenya, and Nigeria, we have significantly expanded our market presence not 
only in India but also across internaƟonal markets. Our diverse client base, exceeding 1,100 
customers, includes esteemed companies such as Astral Limited, ADF Foods Limited, Eris Lifesciences 
Limited, Rossari Biotech Limited, Surya Roshni Ltd, and Prince Pipe & Fiƫngs Limited. While our 
primary focus remains on the Indian market, where we operate in 24 states and 3 union territories, 
we also export to countries across Africa, the Middle East, and Asia. Key revenue contributors within 
India include Gujarat, Rajasthan, and Tamil Nadu.  

 

Product Wise Revenue Breakup 

ParƟculars FY24 
Printers sold (in no.)  1,134.00 
Printers sold (Rs. in lakhs) 2,252.73 
Ink sold (in ltrs) 38,556.18 
Ink sold (Rs. in lakhs) 1,776.23 
Makeup & Cleaner sold (in ltrs) 2,03,347.03 
Makeup & Cleaner sold (Rs. in lakhs) 1,906.26 
Others (AMC, Service, etc.) (Rs. in lakhs) 166.02 
Spairs (Rs. in lakhs) 664.95 
Total (Rs. in Lakhs) 6,766.19 

  

Financial Performance  

 (Rs. in Lakhs) 

ParƟculars FY22 FY23 FY24 
Total Income  4,642.56 5452.97 6,898.62 
EBITDA 482.41 497.34 897.73 
Net Profit 311.25 327.38 613.41 

 

Expansion and Growth IniƟaƟves 

As part of our growth strategy, we are intensifying our market penetraƟon in exisƟng regions while 
expanding into new territories. We recently acquired land in Kanera, Kheda, Gujarat, to develop a 
new printer assembly unit, which has enhanced our manufacturing capabiliƟes and aligns with our 
growth objecƟves. ProducƟon at this new facility commenced on August 31, 2024. Furthermore, our 
acquisiƟon of Jet Inks Private Limited, a specialist in ink manufacturing and printer consumables, is a 
strategic step to diversify our product offerings, leverage exisƟng manufacturing capacity, and 
strengthen our presence in Southern and Eastern India. This move significantly boosts our posiƟon in 
the food and pharma sectors, heralding a new era of growth. 

 

 

 



Customer-Centric Approach and Long-Term Value CreaƟon 

We have built long-term relaƟonships with our customers, many of whom have remained with us for 
years. Our high customer retenƟon rate over the past five years reflects our commitment to 
delivering high-quality products and excepƟonal aŌer-sales service. These strong retenƟon levels 
demonstrate our ability to effecƟvely meet diverse business needs. Looking ahead, we aim to further 
strengthen these relaƟonships, acquire new clients, and conƟnue providing customized soluƟons 
that fully meet their requirements. This approach also empowers us to undertake new R&D 
iniƟaƟves to develop innovaƟve soluƟons tailored to our customers' evolving needs. 

 

OperaƟonal Efficiency and Cost Management 

To stay compeƟƟve and offer quality products at aƩracƟve prices, we are commiƩed to enhancing 
our operaƟonal efficiencies. This includes opƟmizing supply chain management, maintaining opƟmal 
inventory levels, and implemenƟng cost-effecƟve measures to reduce operaƟng expenses. By 
leveraging economies of scale, we aim to more effecƟvely absorb fixed costs and improve overall 
operaƟonal performance. AddiƟonally, we have successfully reduced our interest costs by gradually 
decreasing unsecured loans from directors, thereby easing the financial burden and posiƟvely 
impacƟng our net profit. 

 

CompeƟƟve Advantages 

Our success in the compeƟƟve market landscape is driven by several key factors: 

 Premium Quality Products: We prioriƟze quality in every aspect of our product offerings, 
ensuring that our printers and inks meet the highest standards. 

 Prompt Spare and Service Support: We provide reliable and Ɵmely support to minimize 
downƟme and ensure smooth operaƟons for our customers. 

 OEM-CompaƟble Products: Our products are fully compaƟble with Original Equipment 
Manufacturer (OEM) standards, ensuring seamless integraƟon and performance. 

 In-Built Quality TesƟng Facility: Our rigorous quality control processes guarantee the 
reliability and effecƟveness of our products. 

 Robust Infrastructure: With a strong infrastructure foundaƟon, we can support large-scale 
producƟon and meet diverse customer needs. 

 CompeƟƟve Pricing: We offer high-quality products at reasonable prices, delivering value to 
our customers while maintaining healthy profit margins. 

 Customer RetenƟon: By offering a range of tailored soluƟons, we enhance customer 
confidence, leading to higher retenƟon rates. 

 Investment in R&D and New Product Development: The trust our clients place in us enables 
us to invest in research and development, driving innovaƟon and the creaƟon of new 
products. 

 Investment in Manpower: We are commiƩed to invesƟng in skilled and efficient manpower, 
ensuring that we meet and exceed client expectaƟons. 

 

Risks and Concerns 

1. Market CompeƟƟon: High compeƟƟon in the coding and marking industry could lead to 
price wars, reduced margins, and potenƟal loss of market share. 



2. Technological Changes: Rapid technological advancements require conƟnuous innovaƟon. 
Failure to keep up could make products outdated and affect customer retenƟon. 

3. Supply Chain DisrupƟons: Dependence on a complex supply chain makes the company 
vulnerable to disrupƟons caused by geopoliƟcal tensions, natural disasters, or supplier 
issues. 

4. Dependence on Key Suppliers and Distributors: Relying on specific suppliers and 
distributors, such as Lead Tech (Zhuhai) Electronic Co. Ltd., poses a risk if these partners face 
operaƟonal difficulƟes or if relaƟonships deteriorate. 

5. Regulatory and Compliance Risks: OperaƟng in mulƟple jurisdicƟons exposes the company 
to diverse regulatory requirements, with non-compliance potenƟally leading to fines, legal 
acƟons, or operaƟonal restricƟons. 

6. Economic and PoliƟcal Instability: Economic downturns, currency fluctuaƟons, or poliƟcal 
instability in operaƟng regions could affect consumer spending and financial performance. 

7. OperaƟonal Risks: DisrupƟons or inefficiencies in manufacturing could lead to increased 
costs, delays, and reduced product quality. 

 



 

 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

To the Members of  
AZTEC FLUIDS & MACHINERY LIMITED  
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS AZTEC FLUIDS & MACHINERY PRIVATE LIMITED) 
 

 
I. Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of AZTEC FLUIDS & MACHINERY LIMITED 
Company (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2024, and the 
statement of profit and loss, statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, and notes 
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2024, and its profit/loss and its profit and loss, and its cash flows for the year ended 
on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion on financial statements. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming  



 

 

 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have 
nothing to communicate in this regard.  
Reporting of Key audit matters as per SA 701 are not applicable to the company as it is 
unlisted company as on 31st March, 2024. 
  
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. 
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report, but does 
not include the Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the 
financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone 
Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of 



 

 

Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 
 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
  

1. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 
 
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
 



 

 

2. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 

3. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 

4. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
 
II. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), as amended, 

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 
4 of the Order, to extent applicable. 
 

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 
 
a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 
 
 

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

 
c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt 

with by   this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 
 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. 

 
e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 
31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 



 

 

 
f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report 
in  “Annexure B” 

 
g. With respect to the other matters to be included  in  the Auditor’s  Report  in  accordance 

with  the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations   given 
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act 

 
h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
 
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 

its financial statements. 
 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 
 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection   Fund by the Company. 

 
iv.     (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or 
entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 
               (b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 

no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been 
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity 
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 



 

 

(c)  Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused 
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), 
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

 
v.  The company has paid dividend during the period and the same is in accordance with 

section 123 of the Act. 
 

vi.Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of 
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and same are 
compiled in accordance with the rules specified in this regard.  

 

For, K A R M A & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN No. 127544W/W100376 
Place: Ahmedabad 

Date: 06th June, 2024                SD/- 
 

CA Jignesh A. Dhaduk 
Designated Partner 

M.No.129149 
                                                                  UDIN: 24129149BKEBJO2134 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

 
Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal &Regulatory Requirement’ section 
of our report to the members of AZTEC FLUIDS & MACHINERY LIMITED of even date: 
 
In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and 
the books and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, we state that: 

i. In respect of the company’s Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets; 
 
(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment; 
      (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 
Intangible Assets; 
 
(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of Property, Plant 
and Equipment in a phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, 
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 
Pursuant to the program, certain items of Property, Plant and Equipment’s were 
physically verified by the management during the year. According to the information 
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 
 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by 
us and based on the examination of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, 
the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are 
freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 
 
(d) As explained to us, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment 
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year, hence 
reporting under this clause is not required. 
 
(e)  According to the information and explanations given to us, No proceedings has been 
initiated or are pending against the company under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder, hence reporting under this clause is 
not required. 
 



 

 

 
 

ii. In respect of Inventories; 
 
(a) As explained to us, the inventory has been physically verified at reasonable intervals 
during the year by the management. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is 
reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the 
book records were not exceeding 10% in aggregate for each class of Inventory. The 
discrepancies have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.  

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, the company has not been sanctioned 
working capital limits in excess of five Crores rupees in aggregate, at any point of time 
during the year, from the bank or financial institutions on the basis of security of current 
assets. Accordingly, reporting under this cluse does not arise. 

iii. In respect of Investment made, guarantee or security provided or grant of loans and 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited 
Liabilities Partnership or any other parties: 
 
{A}  (a) According to information and explanation given to us and based on the audit 
procedures carried out by us, the company has no subsidiaries, joint ventures and 
associates. 
  
 (b) In our opinion and according to the explanation given to us, the company has 
granted loans to party other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates as follows: 
            (₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars Amount 
Aggregate amount of loan given during the year: 240.00 
Balance outstanding as at the balance sheet date in 
respect of above case: 

240.00 

 
 

{B} In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, The 
Company has made an Investment in Jet Inks Private Limited through purchase of 8,57,142 
equity shares of ₹ 35 each which is not prejudicial to company’s interest. 

{C} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
examination of the records of the company, in the case of loan given, in our opinion, the 



 

 

repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments 
or receipts have been regular. 

{D} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
examination of the records of the company, there is no overdue amount for more than 
ninety days in respect of loan given. 

{E} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of             
examination of the records of the company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of 
loan granted falling due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh 
loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to same parties. 

{F} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
examination of the records of the company, the company has not granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any 
terms or period of repayment. Hence reporting under clause (iii)(f) of paragraph 3 of the 
order does not arise.  

iv. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, provisions of 
section 185 and 186 are fully complied by the company. The company has not granted 
any loans to the directors or any person with whom director is related. Further, the 
company has not provided any guarantee or security as specified under section 186 of 
the Act.  
 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 
under the directives of the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 
or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed 
thereunder, where applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are 
not applicable. 

 
vi. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified 

maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of 
Company’s products/ services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order 
are not applicable. 
 

vii. In respect of Statutory Dues;  
 

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our   
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally 



 

 

regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees 
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, 
Value added Tax, GST, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate 
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at reporting date for a period 
of more than six months from the date on when they become payable. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the 
company   examined by us, there are no dues of  income tax, sales tax, service tax, GST, 
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax outstanding on account of any dispute. 

viii. According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the company 
examined by us, there are no any transactions which are not recorded in the books of 
accounts and disclosed or surrendered as income during the year in the tax assessment 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly paragraph 3 (viii) of the order is not 
applicable. 
 

ix.  (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender. Accordingly, reporting under this clause is not 
required. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not been 
declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender; 
 
(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has utilized 
the amount of term loans for the purpose for which they were obtained; 
 
(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not 
utilized the short term funds for long term purpose. 
 
(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not taken 
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. 
 
(f) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not raised 
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or 
associate companies. 



 

 

 
x.  (a) During the year, the Company has not raised any funds through Initial Public offer 

or Further Public Offer (Including debt instruments). Accordingly, reporting under 
clause X(a) of paragraph 3 of the Oder does not arise. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the company, the company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or 
optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under this clause is not 
required. 

 
xi.  (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has 
been noticed or reported during the year.  
 
(b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, as no fraud has been noticed during the year, there is no 
requirement to file report under section 143 (12) of The Companies Act in Form ADT-4 
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 
Central Government. 
 
(c) Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, No whistle-blower complaints has been received by the 
company during the year. 
 

xii.  In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 
3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
section 177 and 188 of the Act. Where applicable, the details of such transactions have 
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards. 

 
xiv. (a) In our opinion the company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with 

the size and the nature of its business. 
 
(b)  Internal Audit is not applicable to the Company. Therefore, reporting under this cluse 
does not arise.  
 



 

 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the order 
is not applicable. 

 
xvi. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 

examination of the records of the company, the company is not required to be registered 
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 

 
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the company, the company has not conducted any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of 
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934. 
 
(c) In our opinion, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in 
the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.  
 
(d) In our opinion, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) hence 
reporting under this clause is not required. 
 

xvii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the company, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial 
year and in the immediately preceding financial year. 
 

xviii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the company, there is no resignation of Statutory Auditors during the 
year, hence reporting under this clause is not applicable. 
 

xix. No material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable 
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of 1 year from the balance sheet date. 

 
xx. The provisions of Section 135 towards corporate social responsibility are not applicable 

on the company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable. 
 



 

 

xxi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the company, Company is not required to prepare Consolidated 
Financial Statements. Accordingly, reporting under this clause is not required. 

 

 

For, K A R M A & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 127544W/W100376 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 06th June, 2024 SD/- 

CA Jignesh A. Dhaduk 
Designated Partner 

M.No.: 129149 
UDIN: 24129149BKEBJO2134 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  

“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report  
 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ 
section of our report to the Members of AZTEC FLUIDS & MACHINERY LIMITED of 
even date) 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AZTEC FLUIDS 
& MACHINERY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our 
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls  based  on the  internal  control  over  financial  reporting  criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute  of  Chartered  Accountants  of  India.  These  responsibilities  include  the     
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 
 
 



 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting. 
 

 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that 
could have a material effect on the AS financial  statements. 
 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial  
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 

 
 
 

For, K A R M A & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 127544W/W100376 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 06th June, 2024 SD/- 

CA Jignesh A. Dhaduk 
Designated Partner 

M.No.: 129149 
UDIN: 24129149BKEBJO2134 



A) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1. Shareholders' Funds 
(a) Share Capital A 1,000.00                     200.00                        
(b) Reserves & Surplus A 1,139.55                     1,347.56                     
(c) Share Appication Money -                                -                                

2,139.55                   1,547.56                   
2. Non Current Liabilities 
(a) Long Term Borrowings B 273.95                        219.49                        
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) C -                                -                                
(c) Long term Liabilities D 26.46                           -                                

300.41                       219.49                       
3. Current Liabilities 
(a) Short Term Borrowings E 417.38                        342.82                        
(b) Trade Payables F

(A) outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 31.92                           47.40                           
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 1,141.72                     685.04                        

(c) Other Current Liabilities G 194.87                        128.55                        
(d) Short Term Provisions H 209.10                        110.00                        

1,994.99                   1,313.81                   

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4,434.95                   3,080.86                   

B) ASSETS
1. Non Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets I

I) Property, Plant and Equipment
     (i) Gross Block 581.82                        496.28                        
     (ii) Depreciation 249.95                        219.46                        
     (iii) Net Block 331.88                        276.82                        

II) Intangible Assets 0.02                              0.02                              
III) Capital Work-in-Progress 372.17                        124.47                        
IV) Intangible assets under development -                                -                                

(b) Non-Current Investment J 743.31                        428.27                        
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) C 23.28                           16.52                           
(d) Long Term Loans and Advances -                                -                                
(e) Other Non Current Assets K 270.04                        183.27                        

1,740.70                   1,029.38                   
2. Current Assets
(a) Trade Receivables L 949.46                        966.58                        
(b) Cash and Cash equivalents M 127.17                        304.52                        
(c) Inventories N 488.00                        125.52                        
(d) Short-Term Loans and Advances O 290.76                        63.12                           
(e) Other Current Assets P 838.88                        591.74                        

2,694.25                   2,051.48                   

TOTAL ASSETS 4,434.95                   3,080.86                   

As per our report of even date

For K A R M A & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reg. No. 127544W/W100376

Pulin Vaidhya Amisha Vaidhya
Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN - 03012651 DIN - 03077466

Jignesh A Dhaduk
Designated Partner
Membership No. 129149
UDIN: 24129149BKEBJO2134 Harsh Rawal Rekha Jhanwar
Place: Ahmedabad Chief Financial Ofiicer Company Secretary
Date: 06th June, 2024 ACS 42596

For, Aztec Fluids & Machinery Limited

AZTEC FLUIDS & MACHINERY LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2024
(Rs. in Lakhs)

31-03-202331-03-2024NOTESPARTICULARS

SD/-

SD/-

SD/-



1 Revenue From Operations Q 6,768.02                   5,426.11                   

2 Other Income R 130.59                       26.86                          

3 Total Income (1+2) 6,898.62                   5,452.97                   

4 Expenditure
(a) S 3,896.72                   3,383.79                   

S 529.16                       191.44                       
(b) T (21.14)                        -                               
(c) Employee Benefit Expenses U 701.23                       610.67                       
(d) Finance Cost V 52.53                          38.78                          
(e) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses W 30.49                          29.66                          
(f) Other Expenses X 894.92                       769.73                       

5 Total Expenditure 4(a) to 4(f) 6,083.91                   5,024.06                   

6
814.71                       428.90                       

7 Exceptional and Extra-ordinary items -                               -                               

8 Profit/(Loss) Before Tax  (6-7) 814.71                       428.90                       

9 Tax Expense:
(a) Tax Expense for Current Year 209.10                       110.00                       
(b) Short/(Excess) Provision of Earlier Year (1.04)                           
(c) Deferred Tax (6.76)                           (0.32)                           

Net Current Tax Expenses 201.30                       109.68                       

10 Profit/(Loss) for the Year (8-9) 613.41                       319.22                       

11 Basic Earning Per Share 6.13                            3.19                            
12 Diluted Earning Per Share 6.13                            3.19                            

As per our report of even date

For K A R M A & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reg. No. 127544W/W100376

Pulin Vaidhya Amisha Vaidhya
Managing Director Whole Time Director

Jignesh A Dhaduk DIN - 03012651 DIN - 03077466
Designated Partner
Membership No. 129149
UDIN: 24129149BKEBJO2134
Place: Ahmedabad Harsh Rawal Rekha Jhanwar
Date: 06th June, 2024 Chief Financial Ofiicer Company Secretary

ACS 42596

Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional & 
extraordinary items & Tax  (3-5)

For, Aztec Fluids & Machinery Limited

Change in inventories of finished goods, 

AZTEC FLUIDS & MACHINERY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31.03.2024

(II) Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

31-03-202331-03-2024

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(I) Cost of Material Consumed

NotePARTICULARS

SD/-

SD/-

SD/-



31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Rupees Rupees

A) Cash Flow From Operating Activities :
Net Profit before tax 814.71                               428.90                             
Adjustment for  :
Depreciation and amortization 30.49                                 29.66                                
Interest Expense 48.75                                 38.78                                
Interest Income (16.44)                              (8.76)                                 
Adjustment for Non Cash Items -                                    0.75                                  
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Vehicle -                                    (1.02)                                 
Gain on sale of MF (15.04)                              (8.59)                                 

Operating profit before working capital changes 862.47                              479.73                            

Changes in Working Capital
  (Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 17.12                                93.00                                
  (Increase)/Decrease in Inventory (362.47)                            35.23                                
  (Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances (227.63)                            (7.60)                                 
  (Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets (247.14)                            (45.90)                              
  Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 441.20                             37.28                                
  Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 76.07                                22.87                                
  Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions, etc 99.10                                (95.85)                              
  Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Liability 26.46                                 -                                    

Cash generated from operations 685.18                              518.76                            

Direct Taxes Paid (208.06)                            (110.00)                            

Net cash flow from operating activities A 477.12                              408.76                            

B) Cash Flow From Investing Activities :
Purchase of Fixed Assets including of CWIP (333.24)                            (160.96)                            
Sale of Fixed Assets -                                    1.34                                  
(Purchase)/Sale of investments (315.04)                            (15.16)                              
(Increase)/Decrease in Other non current Asset (86.77)                              54.89                                
Interest Income 16.44                                8.76                                  
Profit on sale of Vehicle -                                    1.02                                  
Gain on sale of MF 15.04                                 8.59                                  

Net cash flow from investing activities B (703.57)                          (101.52)                          

C) Cash Flow From Financing Activities :
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings 74.56                                63.36                                
Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings 54.47                                (53.45)                              
Interest Expense (48.75)                              (38.78)                              
Dividend Paid (9.75)                                 (29.25)                              
Adjustment in reserve and surplus (21.42)                              (2.99)                                 

Net cash flow from financing activities C 49.11                               (61.11)                             

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (177.35)                            246.13                             

Cash equivalents at the begining of the year 304.52                             58.39                                

Cash equivalents at the end of the year 127.17                              304.52                              

AZTEC FLUIDS & MACHINERY LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS
FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR ENDED



Notes :-

31-03-2024 31-03-2023
1.

9.32                                    21.34                                
117.85                               283.18                             

Total 127.17                              304.52                              

2

As per our report of even date

For K A R M A & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reg. No. 127544W/W100376

Pulin Vaidhya Amisha Vaidhya
Managing Director Whole Time Director

Jignesh A Dhaduk DIN - 03012651 DIN - 03077466
Designated Partner
Membership No. 129149
UDIN: 24129149BKEBJO2134
Place: Ahmedabad Harsh Rawal Rekha Jhanwar
Date: 06th June, 2024 Chief Financial Ofiicer Company Secretary

ACS 42596

Component of Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balance With banks

For, Aztec Fluids & Machinery Limited

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method,whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.
The cash flows from regular revenue generating, financing and investing activities of the company are
segregated.

SD/-

SD/-

SD/-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2024 
 
 

1) COMPANY INFORMATION 
 
AZTEC FLUIDS & MACHINERY LIMITED (the “Company”) was incorporated on April 28, 
2010 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with the Registrar of Companies, 
Ahmedabad. The Company’s registered office is situated at Part H Plinth, 4th Floor, 
Takshashila Square, Nr. Krishnabag Four Rd, Maninagar, Ahmedabad, Gujarat, India, 380028. 
The company is primarily involved in the manufacturing of Printers and trading of inks used 
therein. 

 

2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

2.1 Basis of preparation of Financial Statements: 
 

These maintained financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention 
from books of accounts on an accrual basis in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in India and comply with the Accounting standards issued by the 
Institute of chartered Accountants of India and referred to sec 129 & 133 of the companies 
Act, 2013, of India. The accounting policies applied by the company are consistent with those 
used in previous year. 
 
Use of Estimates: 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Accounting Standards requires 
the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the 
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to 
the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Difference between the actual 
result and estimates are recognized in the period in which they are known/ materialized. 

 
2.2 Disclosure of Accounting policies: 

 

The Accounting Principles and policies recognized as appropriate for measurement and 
reporting of the financial performance and the financial position on mercantile system and 
recognize items of income and expenditure on accrual basis. The statement on significant 
Accounting policy excludes disclosures regarding Accounting standards in respect of which 
there are no material transactions during year. 

 
2.3 Revenue recognition: 

 

Revenue is recognized only when all the significant risks and rewards incident to ownership 
to the customer, it can be reliably measured and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection. 
Revenue from operation includes Sales of Goods net of Goods and Services Tax, adjusted for 
discounts (net) and gain / Loss on corresponding hedged contracts. 
 
Revenue/ Loss from bargain settlement of goods is recognized at the time of settlement of 
transactions. 
 

          Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. 
 
Interest Income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the interest rate applicable. 

 
All other income and Expenditure are recognized and accounted for on accrual basis. 

 
 
 



 
2.4 Valuation of Inventories: 

 
Inventories are measured at cost and net realizable value whichever is lower. Net realizable 
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost 
necessary to make the sale. Costs in respect of all other Inventories are computed on 
weighted average basis method, finished goods and process stock include cost of conversion 
and other costs incurred in acquiring the inventory and bringing them to their present 
location and condition. 

 
 

2.5 Property Plant and Equipment and Capital Work in Progress: 
 
Tangible Assets are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates and 
include amounts added on revaluation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, 
if any. The cost of Tangible Assets comprises its purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost 
directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, net 
charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations 
attributable to the assets. 
 
Subsequent expenditures related to an item of Tangible Asset are added to its book value. 
Only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously 
assessed standard of performance. 
 
Assets which are not ready for their intended use are disclosed under Capital Work-in- 
Progress and all the cost relating to such assets are shown under work-in-progress. 
 
Identification of the components of Property, Plant & Equipment’s as required under revised 
AS 10 is under process. 

 
2.6 Depreciation and Impairment:  

 
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided on the written down value Method over the 
useful lives of assets as prescribed in the schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Depreciation for assets purchased sold during a period is proportionately charged. 
Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a 
written down value, commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its 
use. 
 
Depreciation and Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed 
periodically, at each financial year end. 
 
Pursuant to the enactment of Companies Act 2013, the Company has applied the estimated 
useful lives as specified in Schedule II. 
 
The Management periodically assesses, using external and internal sources, whether there is 
an indication that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the 
carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher 
of the asset's net selling price and value in use, which means the present value of future cash 
flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and its eventual disposal. An 
impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively 
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The carrying amount of an 
asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated 
amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior 
years. 

 



2.7 Leases  
 
Assets taken on lease by the Company in its capacity as lessee, where the Company has 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease. Such a 
lease is capitalized at the inception of the lease at lower of the fair value or the present value 
of the minimum lease payments and a liability is recognized for an equivalent amount. Each 
lease rental paid is allocated between the liability and the interest cost so as to obtain a 
constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each year. 

 
Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset 
substantially vest with the lessor, are recognised as operating leases. Lease rentals under 
operating leases are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis. 
 

2.8 Accounting for Investments 
 
Long-term investments and current maturities of long-term investments are stated at cost, 
less provision for other than temporary diminution in value. Current investments, except for 
current maturities of long-term investments, comprising investments in mutual funds, 
government securities and bonds are stated at the lower of cost and fair value. 

 
2.9 Taxation 

 
Current income tax expense comprises taxes on income from operations in India and in 
foreign jurisdictions. Income tax payable in India is determined in accordance with the 
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Tax expense relating to foreign operations is 
determined in accordance with tax laws applicable in countries where such operations are 
domiciled. 
 
Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which gives 
rise to future economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is 
considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal 
income tax after the tax holiday period. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the 
balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future 
economic benefit associated with it will fructify. 
 
Deferred tax expense or benefit is recognised on timing differences being the difference 
between taxable incomes and accounting income that originate in one period and is likely to 
reverse in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured 
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
balance sheet date. 
 
Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet 
after off-setting advance tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax 
jurisdiction for relevant tax paying units and where the Company is able to and intends to 
settle the asset and liability on a net basis. 

 
The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if it has a legally 
enforceable right and these relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation 
laws. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
2.10  Retirement benefits & other employee benefits 

 
Defined-contribution plans: 

 
All short term employee benefits are accounted on undiscounted basis during the accounting 
period based on services rendered by employees. 

 
The Company's contribution to Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance Scheme is 
determined based on a fixed percentage of the eligible employees' salary and charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.  

 
In the financial statements, The Company has made provision for payment of Gratuity to its 
employees, based on the actuarial valuation report obtained from actuarial Valuer. 
 
Employee Benefits: 
The Company has adopted the Accounting Standard 15 (revised 2005) on Employee Benefits 
during the restated financials period.  The disclosure as envisaged under the Accounting 
Standard is provided hereunder: 

 (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Details of Gratuity Expenses  
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

 
Profit and loss account for the period   

Current service cost 5.60 4.68 
Interest on obligation 1.26 0.48 

Expected return on plan assets   
Net actuarial loss/(gain) 8.47 6.54 

Recognised Past Service Cost-Vested   
Loss (gain) on curtailments   

Total included in 'Employee Benefit Expense' 15.33 11.70 
prior year charge   

Total Charge to P&L 15.33 11.70 
   

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation   
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 21.16 9.46 

Transfer in/(out) obligation   
Current service cost 5.60 4.68 

Interest cost 1.26 0.48 
Actuarial loss (gain) 8.47 6.54 

Past service cost   
Benefits paid   

prior year charge   
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 36.49 21.16 

   
Table of experience adjustments   

Defined Benefit Obligation   
Plan Assets   

Surplus/(Deficit)   
Reconciliation of plan assets   
Opening value of plan assets   
Transfer in/(out) plan assets   

Expenses deducted from the fund   
Expected return   

Actuarial gain/(loss)   
Contributions by employer   

Benefits paid   



Closing value of plan assets   
   

Details of Gratuity Expenses 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 
   

Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability   
Net opening provision in books of accounts 21.16 9.46 

Transfer in/(out) obligation   
Transfer (in)/out plan assets   
Employee Benefit Expense  15.33 11.70 

Benefits paid by the Company   
Contributions to plan assets   

Closing provision in books of accounts 36.49 21.16 
   
   

Bifurcation of liability   
Current Liability 12.02 7.34 

Non-Current Liability 24.46 13.82 
Net Liability 36.49 21.16 

   
Principle actuarial assumptions   

Discount Rate 7.15% p.a. 7.20% p.a. 
Expected Return on Plan Assets NA NA 

Salary Escalation Rate 4.00% p.a. 4.00% p.a. 
Expected Return on Plan Assets NA NA 

  
 

2.11 Borrowing Costs 
  
 Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a 

qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset till such time the asset is ready 
for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period 
of time to get ready for its intended use. Costs incurred in raising funds are amortized 
equally over the period for which the funds are acquired. All other borrowing costs are 
charged to profit and loss account.  

 
 

2.12 Foreign currency transactions  
 

Income and expense in foreign currencies are converted at exchange rates prevailing on the 
date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities other than net 
investments in non-integral foreign operations are translated at the exchange rate prevailing 
on the balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss. Exchange difference arising on a monetary item that, in substance, forms part 
of an enterprise’s net investments in a non-integral foreign operation are accumulated in a 
foreign currency translation reserve. 

 
 

2.13  Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets 
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event 
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in 
respect of which reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and 
compensated absences) are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on 
best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at 
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities 
are not recognised in the financial statements. A contingent asset is neither recognised nor 
disclosed in the financial statements. 



 
2.14 Earnings per Share  

 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable 
to the equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the Period/year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, 
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted 
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.  
 
 

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents 
 
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible 
into known amount of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and 
having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash 
equivalents. 



NOTE – A 
STATEMENT OF SHARE CAPITAL & RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

   
(Rs. In Lakhs, Except Share Data) 

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023 

Share Capital     
      
Authorised Share Capital     
1,40,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each 1,40,00,000 20,00,000 
Equity Share Capital (in Amount) 1,400.00 200.00 
    
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital   
1,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each 1,00,00,000 20,00,000 
Equity Share Capital (in Amount) 1,000.00 200.00 

Total 1,000.00 200.00 

   
Reserves and Surplus   
    
Surplus in Profit and Loss account   
Balance as per the last financial statements 1,347.56 1,260.33 
Profit for the Year 613.41 319.22 
Provision for Dividend - (30.00) 
Less: Bonus Share Issued* (800.00) (199.00) 
Other Adjustments (21.42) (2.99) 
    
Balance as at the end of Financial Year 1,139.55 1,347.56 

 

* During the FY 23-24 the company has issued bonus shares of 80,00,000 at Rs. 10 each by 
capitalising reserves & surplus balances. 

* During the FY 23-23 the company has issued bonus shares of 19,90,000 at Rs. 10 each by 
capitalising reserves & surplus balances. 

   
1. Terms/rights attached to equity shares:   

i. The company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of  
Rs.10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. 
ii. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares shall be entitled to 
receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. 
The amount distributed will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders. 

2. Company does not have any Revaluation Reserve.  
 
 
 
 

  



  
3. The reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding as at: -  

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023 

Number of shares at the beginning of the year 20,00,000 10,000 
Add: Bonus Share Issued # 80,00,000 19,90,000 
Add: Fresh Issue of shares    
Number of shares at the end of the year 1,00,00,000 20,00,000 

# During the FY 23-24 company has issued bonus shares in proportion of 4:1 of present share 
holding. 
# During the FY 22-23 company has issued bonus shares in proportion of 199:1 of present share 
holding. 

   
4. The detail of shareholders holding more than 5% of Shares: -    

Name of Shareholders 31/03/2024 31/03/2023  

       
Pulin Vaidhya 74,99,700 15,00,000  
Amisha Vaidhya 24,99,800 5,00,000  

 

5. Promoter's Shareholding    

    
Shares held by Promoters as on 31.03.2024 

Name No. of Shares % of Total 
Shares 

% Change 
During the 

Year 

        
Pulin Vaidhya 74,99,700 74.997% -0.003% 
Amisha Vaidhya 24,99,800 24.998% -0.002% 
Kumudchandra B. Vaidhya 100 0.001% 0.001% 

    
Shares held by Promoters at the end of the years 31.03.2023 

Name No. of Shares 
% of Total 

Shares 

% Change 
During the 

Year 

        
Pulin Vaidhya 15,00,000 75.000% 0.000% 
Amisha Vaidhya 5,00,000 25.000% 0.000% 
 
   



 
 
 
6. Equity shares movement during the 5 years preceding 
March 31, 2024 

    
i) Equity shares issued as bonus    

    
The Company allotted 80,00,000 equity shares as fully paid up bonus shares by capitalisation of 
reserves & surplus balances during the FY 23-24 
 
The Company allotted 19,90,000 equity shares as fully paid up bonus shares by capitalisation of 
reserves & surplus balances during the FY 2022-23. 
 
 
 

                                                                                                                                              NOTE- __B 
LONG TERM BORROWINGS 

 
                                                                                                                                          (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023 
   

   
 (a) Secured Loans    
        - ECLDISB Loan from ICICI Bank  - 32.00 
        - Vehicle Loans  52.50 11.04 
        - Term Loans - ICICI Bank  109.80  
   
 Sub-total (a)  162.30 43.04 

   
 (b) Loans and advances from related parties & Others     
        (Unsecured)  

 

 

 

   
(i) From Directors   
      Pulin Vaidhya 5.99 15.28 
      Amisha Vaidhya 105.66 149.57 
      Kumudchandra Vaidhya - 11.60 

   
  
 Sub-total (b)  

111.65 176.45 

   
  
Total (a+b)  

273.95 219.49 

   
Notes:         
1. The terms and conditions and other information in respect of Secured Loans and Unsecured 
Loans are given in NOTE-B (A). 
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NOTE- __C 
DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) / LIABILITIES 

   
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023 

      
Opening Balance (A)     
Opening Balance of Deferred Tax (Asset) / Liability (16.52) (16.21) 
    
Closing Balances (B) 

  

(DTA) / DTL on Timing Difference in Depreciation as per 
Companies Act and Income Tax Act. (11.66) (16.52) 
(DTA) / DTL in case of Preliminry Expense written off (2.43) - 
(DTA) / DTL on account of gratuity provision (9.18) - 
Closing Balance of Deferred Tax (Asset) / Liability (B) (23.28) (16.52)  

  
 
Current Year Provision (B-A) (6.76) (0.32)    

   
NOTE – D 

LONG TERM LIABILITIES 

   
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023 

     
  
Liability for Gratuity (Non-Current)  24.46 - 
  
Rent Deposit  2.00 - 
    
 
 Total  26.46 - 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTE – E 
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 

 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

 Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023 
   
   

Current Maturity of Long Term Debts   
Vehicle Loans 20.61 9.40 
Term Loans - ICICI Bank 21.51 - 
ECLDISB Loan from ICICI Bank 31.11 - 

   
Loan Repayable on Demand    
From Banks   
ICICI Bank - Buyer's Credit Account (Bill Discounting) 344.14 333.42 

   
Total  417.38 342.82 
 
Note :  
 

  

1. The terms and conditions and other information in respect of Secured Loans are given in NOTE-
B (A). 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Trade Payables

Outstanding due to Micro and Small Enterprises (A) 31.92                   47.40                   
Outstanding due to Creditors other then Micro and Small 
Enterprises (B) 1,141.72            685.04                

Total (A+B) 1,173.64            732.44                

1. Trade Payables ageing schedule as on 31.03.2024

Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  
 More than 3 

years 
(i)MSME 31.92                    -                         -                         -                         31.92                  
(ii)Others 1,140.77              0.95                       -                         -                         1,141.72            
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME -                         -                         -                         -                         -                       
(iv) Disputed dues - Others -                         -                         -                         -                         -                       

2. Trade Payables ageing schedule as on 31.03.2023

Less than 1 year  1-2 years  2-3 years  
 More than 3 

years 
(i)MSME 47.40                    -                         -                         -                         47.40                  
(ii)Others 685.04                  -                         -                         -                         685.04                
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME -                         -                         -                         -                         -                       
(iv) Disputed dues - Others -                         -                         -                         -                         -                       

Notes:

NOTE – F

Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction

31/03/2023Particulars 31/03/2024

Total

(Rs. in Lakhs)

1. Amount due to entities covered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006, have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. 

STATEMENT OF TRADE PAYABLES

TotalParticulars 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction

Particulars 



 

 

 

NOTE – G 
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023 

     
Statutory Dues    
    PF Payable 4.16 3.51 
    ESIC Payable 0.17 0.11 
    Professional Tax Payable 0.20 0.16 
    TDS Payable 28.35 16.80 
    TCS Payable 0.09 0.08 

GST Payable 88.51 28.97 
    
Other Liabilities   
   Advance received form Customers 41.03 13.90 
   Salary Payable 12.37 38.98 
   Dividend Payable - 9.75 
   Liability for Gratuity (Current) 12.02 - 
   Interest Accrued but not due - 0.14 
   Reimbursement of Expenses 7.97 16.15 

    
Total 194.87 128.55 

   

   
NOTE – H 

SHORT TERM PROVISIONS 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023 

      
Short Term Provisions     

Provision for Income Tax 209.10 110.00 
    

Total 209.10 110.00 
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NOTE – J 
NON CURRENT INVESTMENT 

 
 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023 

      
 Investment in Mutual Funds  443.31 428.27 
 Investment in Unlisted  Equity Shares  300.00 - 
 (8,57,142 Shares of Rs. 35 each of Jet Inks Private 
Limited)    
    

 Total  743.31 428.27 
 
 
    

NOTE – K 
OTHER NON CURRENT ASSET 

 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023 

      
 Security Deposits  11.69 7.41 
 Fixed Deposits with Banks  258.34 172.86 
 Preliminary Expenses not w/f  0.00 3.00 
    

 Total  270.04 183.27 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



T
ra

d
e 

R
ec

ei
va

b
le

s
U

ns
ec

ur
ed

 C
on

si
de

re
d 

go
od

94
9.

46
   

   
   

   
   

96
6.

58
   

   
   

   
   

T
ot

al
9

4
9

.4
6

   
   

   
   

  
9

6
6

.5
8

   
   

   
   

  

1
. T

ra
d

e 
R

ec
ei

va
b

le
s 

ag
ei

n
g 

sc
h

ed
u

le
 A

S 
A

T
 3

1
.0

3
.2

0
2

4

Le
ss

 t
h

an
 6

 
m

on
th

s
 6

 m
on

th
s 

- 1
 

ye
ar

 
 1

-2
 y

ea
rs

 
 2

-3
 y

ea
rs

 
 M

or
e 

th
an

 3
 

ye
ar

s 
 T

ot
al

 

 
 

(i
) 

U
nd

is
pu

te
dT

ra
de

 r
ec

ei
va

bl
es

 –
co

ns
id

er
ed

 g
oo

d
78

1.
57

   
   

   
   

   
80

.9
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

47
.6

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

.7
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

22
.5

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
94

9.
46

   
   

   
   

 
 

(i
i)

 U
nd

is
pu

te
dT

ra
de

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
es

 –
co

ns
id

er
ed

 d
ou

bt
fu

l 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(i

ii)
 D

is
pu

te
d 

T
ra

de
 R

ec
ei

va
bl

es
  c

on
si

de
re

d 
go

od
(i

v)
 D

is
pu

te
d 

T
ra

de
 R

ec
ei

va
bl

es
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
do

ub
tf

ul

2
. T

ra
d

e 
R

ec
ei

va
b

le
s 

ag
ei

n
g 

sc
h

ed
u

le
 A

S 
A

T
 3

1
.0

3
.2

0
2

3

Le
ss

 t
h

an
 6

 
m

on
th

s
 6

 m
on

th
s 

- 1
 

ye
ar

 
 1

-2
 y

ea
rs

 
 2

-3
 y

ea
rs

 
 M

or
e 

th
an

 3
 

ye
ar

s 
 T

ot
al

 

 
 

(i
) 

U
nd

is
pu

te
dT

ra
de

 r
ec

ei
va

bl
es

 –
co

ns
id

er
ed

 g
oo

d
77

1.
60

   
   

   
   

   
12

1.
40

   
   

   
   

   
51

.0
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

4.
06

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
18

.4
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

96
6.

58
   

   
   

   
 

 
(i

i)
 U

nd
is

pu
te

dT
ra

de
 R

ec
ei

va
bl

es
 –

co
ns

id
er

ed
 d

ou
bt

fu
l 

(i
ii)

 D
is

pu
te

d 
T

ra
de

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
es

  c
on

si
de

re
d 

go
od

(i
v)

 D
is

pu
te

d 
T

ra
de

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
es

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

do
ub

tf
ul

N
O

T
E 

– 
L

T
R

A
D

E 
R

EC
EI

V
A

B
LE

S
(R

s.
 in

 L
ak

h
s)

P
ar

ti
cu

la
rs

P
ar

ti
cu

la
rs

 
O

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g 
fo

r 
fo

ll
ow

in
g 

p
er

io
d

s 
fr

om
 d

u
e 

d
at

e 
of

 p
ay

m
en

t/
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n

3
1

-0
3

-2
0

2
4

3
1

-0
3

-2
0

2
3

P
ar

ti
cu

la
rs

 
O

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g 
fo

r 
fo

ll
ow

in
g 

p
er

io
d

s 
fr

om
 d

u
e 

d
at

e 
of

 p
ay

m
en

t/
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n



Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand 9.32                     21.34                  

Balances with Banks 
ICICI Bank - EEFC Account -                       4.85                     
ICICI Bank - FDOD Account (Debit Balance) 103.24                274.44                
ICICI Bank - Cash Credit Account (Debit Balance) 14.56                  3.88                     
ICICI Bank - OD Account (Debit Balance) 0.04                     0.01                     

Total 127.17             304.52             

Raw Material 466.86 125.52
Finished Goods/Traded Goods 21.14                 -                     

Total 488.00 125.52

Loans and advances to related parties
Inter Corporate loan (Jet Inks Pvt Ltd) 240.00              -                     

Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated

Advance Recoverable either in Cash or Kinds 0.15                   8.09                   
Loans and Advance to Employees 50.61                 55.04                 

Total 290.76             63.12                

NOTE – O
SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023

NOTE – N
INVENTORIES

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023

NOTE – M
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023



Balance with Revenue Authorities
Advance Tax 190.00               120.00               
TCS Receivables 0.15                    0.09                    
TDS Receivables 6.43                    4.75                    
Custom Duty Receivables 401.83               300.64               
Protest Duty Paid - For Custom Appeal 50.00                 50.00                 
Income Tax Refund Receivables -                      25.40                 
GST Receivable 65.63                 1.80                    

Other Current Assets
Advance given to creditors 85.32                 64.96                 
Prepaid Expense 26.18                 24.11                 
IPO Expenses 13.34                 -                      

Total 838.88              591.74              

NOTE – P
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023



Sale of products
     - Assembled Goods (Printer) 2,252.73                      1,694.60                      
     - Manufactured Goods (Makeup & Wash) 2,714.85                      2,760.90                      
     - Traded Goods (Ink) 967.64                         349.29                         

Sale of Services (AMC, Repairs etc) 164.77                         102.96                         

Sale of Spares and Others 664.95                         510.14                         

Other Operating Income
     - MEIS License Sale income -                                6.34                              
     - Export Duty Drawback 3.08                              1.88                              

Total 6,768.02                     5,426.11                     

Gain on Sale of Mutual Funds 15.04                           8.59                              
Profit on Sale of Vehicle -                                1.02                              
Currency Rate Differences 97.31                           -                                
Balance Written Off 0.49                              8.49                              
Interest from Fixed Deposits 14.45                           8.76                              
Interest on IT Refund 1.98                              -                                
Rent Income 1.25                              -                                
Other Misc. Income 0.07                              -                                

Total 130.59                         26.86                            

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

NOTE – Q
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023

NOTE – R
OTHER INCOME



Raw Material Consumed
Opening Stock 125.52                     160.75                     
Purchases 4,238.05                  3,348.56                  
Less: Closing Stock 466.86                     125.52                     

Total 3,896.72                3,383.79                

Purchases of Stock
     - Purchase of Inks 529.16                     191.44                     

Total 529.16                    191.44                    

Opening Stock of Finished Goods -                            -                            
Closing Stock of Finished Goods 21.14                        -                            

Increase/(Decrease) in Stock (21.14)                     -                            

Salary and Wages , Including Bonus & Incentive 479.31                     394.79                     
Remuneration to Directors & MD 129.00                     129.00                     
Contribution to PF and Other Funds 24.86                        22.84                        
Repair and Maintenance 52.73                        64.04                        
Gratuity Expenses 15.33                        -                            

Total 701.23                    610.67                    

NOTE – U
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023

NOTE – T
CHANGE IN INVENTORIES

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023

NOTE – S

PURCHASES OF STOCK IN TRADE
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023

COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023



Interest and Other Borrowing Cost
  Bank Charges including Commission and Loan Processing Charges 3.78                        6.63                        
  Interest on Cash Credit Facility 0.15                        0.86                        
  Interest on Bill Discounting Facility (Buyer's Credit) 16.76                     8.15                        
  Interest on Overdraft 0.19                        1.63                        
  Interest on Term Loan 13.95                     2.85                        
  Interest on Unsecured Loan 14.14                     16.64                     
  Interest on Vehicle Loan 3.56                        2.03                        

Total 52.53                    38.78                    

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses                        30.49                        29.66 

Total 30.49                    29.66                    

NOTE – W
DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/2023

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

NOTE – V
FINANCE COST

31/03/2024 31/03/2023



Direct and Indirect Expenses

Freight & Transportation Expenses                    23.47                    19.40 
Inspection and Lab Testing Charges                      1.17                      3.23 
C & F Charges                    90.99                    69.48 
Custom Duty Expenses                    71.92                    58.17 
Packing Expenses                      0.51                      0.41 
Worker Salary Expenses                    31.86                    40.57 
Remuneration to Auditors                      1.46                      0.65 
Currency Rate Differences                           -                      35.26 
Donation Expenses                      0.17                      0.10 
Bad Debts                    54.22                    50.09 
Legal & Professional Expenses                    49.50                    34.18 
Telephone Expenses                      2.58                      2.34 
Rent Expenses                    18.42                    30.93 
Repairs and Maintenance
    Repairs to Buildings                      0.57                      0.74 
    Repairs of Machinery                      2.55                      2.30 
    Repairs of Others                      5.47                      5.56 
Petrol Expenses                    17.65                    17.29 
Travelling Expenses                           -   
   - Domestic                 209.83                 165.08 
   - Foreign                           -                             -   
Security and Safety Charges                      4.16                      0.17 
Sundry Balance Written off                      5.14                      0.37 
Interest, Late Fees, penalty on Statutory Dues                      6.62                      0.81 
Insurance Expenses                      1.46                      1.01 
Internet Expenses                      0.32                      0.58 
Kasar and Vatav                      0.02                      0.52 
Office Expenses                    13.88                    11.11 
Postage and Courier Expenses                    90.20                    70.01 
Web Servicing Expenses                           -                        0.33 
Other Membership, Licence and Subscription Fees                      3.72                      0.86 
Stationery and Printing Expenses                      5.31                      4.72 
Tea and Refreshment Expenses                      1.51                      3.17 
Software Programming Expenses                      1.39                      2.95 
Preliminary Expense written off                    13.00                      0.75 
ROC Compliance Fees                      0.91                      0.09 
Electrical Expenses                      0.09                      0.09 
Electricity Expenses                      5.83                      4.15 
Entertainment Expenses                      0.17                      3.27 
Rates and Taxes                    10.24                      7.14 
Advertisement Expenses                      2.59                      3.88 
Commission and Incentive Expenses                 124.71                 106.15 
Exhibition and Meeting Expense                    21.30                    11.80 

Total 894.92             769.73             

Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023

OTHER EXPENSES
(Rs. in Lakhs)

NOTE – X
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Note - Z

(a)

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Person / Entity

1 Pulin K. Vaidhya
2 Amisha P. Vaidhya
3 Kumudchandra B. Vaidhya
4 Axis Druckfarben LLP
5 Fluidtech Corporation
6 Aztec Fluids & Machinery
7 Jet Inks Private Limited

(b) Transaction with related Parties :- (Rs. In Lakhs)

31/03/2024 2022-23

1 Remuneration Paid to Directors
i) Pulin K. Vaidhya 75.00                                  75.00                                  
ii) Amisha P. Vaidhya 54.00                                  54.00                                  

2 Interest on Unsecured loan
i) Pulin K. Vaidhya 0.79                                    0.43                                    
ii) Amisha P. Vaidhya 12.33                                  16.20                                  
iii) Kumudchandra B. Vaidhya 1.03                                    -                                      

3(I) Rent Expenses
i) Pulin K. Vaidhya 2.50                                    9.90                                    
ii) Amisha P. Vaidhya 2.50                                    9.90                                    

3(II) Rent Income
i) Fluidtech Corporation 1.25                                    -                                      

4 Sales of Goods
i) Axis Druckfarben LLP 463.04                               555.22                               
ii) Jet Inks Private Limited 116.05                               -                                      

5 Purchase of Goods
i) Axis Druckfarben LLP 9.09                                    6.55                                    
ii) Fluidtech Corporation 529.16                               191.44                               

6 Professional Fees
i) Kumudchandra B. Vaidhya 3.75 9.00                                    

7 Investment Made
i) Jet Inks Private Limited 300 -                                      

SI No. Particulars 
For the financial year/Period Ended

Entity in which KMP are interested
Entity in which KMP are interested

Managing Director
Director
Director

Entity in which Relative of KMP are interested
Entity in which KMP are interested

 STATEMENT OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Relation

 List of Related parties

Names of the related parties with whom transactions were carried out during the years and 
description of relationship:



8 On Account Transactions

i)
Aztec Fluids & Machinery (Amount rec. by 
company on behalf the entity) -                                      10.12                                  

9 (I) Loan Taken by the Company
i) Pulin K. Vaidhya -                                      15.43                                  
ii) Amisha P. Vaidhya -                                      16.20                                  
iii) Kumudchandra B. Vaidhya -                                      11.60                                  

9 (II) Intercorporate Loan given by the Company

i) Jet Inks Private Limited 240.00 -                                      

10 Loan Paid back by the Company
i) Pulin K. Vaidhya 9.29 4.56                                    
ii) Amisha P. Vaidhya 43.91 88.84                                  
iii) Aztec Fluids & Machinery -                                      -                                      
iv) Kumudchandra B. Vaidhya 11.60 -                                      

11 Deposit taken by the company
i) Fluidtech Corporation -                                      -                                      

12 Balance Outstanding
Loan Payable Balances

i) Pulin K. Vaidhya 5.99 15.28                                  
ii) Amisha P. Vaidhya 105.66 149.57                               
iii) Kumudchandra B. Vaidhya 0.00 11.60                                  

Remuneration Payables
i) Pulin K. Vaidhya 0.00 3.85                                    
ii) Amisha P. Vaidhya 1.21 2.70                                    

Trade Receivables
i) Axis Druckfarben LLP 63.97 109.27                               
ii) Jet Inks Private Limited 0.00 -                                      

Trade Payables
i) Axis Druckfarben LLP 3.52 2.60                                    
ii) Fluidtech Corporation (48.98)                                (0.01)                                  

Investment Balance
i) Jet Inks Private Limited 300 -                                      

Rent Receivables
i) Fluidtech Corporation 0.23                                    -                                      

Intercorporate Loan Balance
i) Jet Inks Private Limited 240.00                               



(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

3,473.87                   2,658.94                  
-                              3.34                           

3,473.87                  2,662.28                 

2. Expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year

As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

28.25                         23.53                        
ii) Bonus Expenses 6.88                            

3. Earnings in foreign exchange

As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

406.15                       160.24                      

4. Auditors' Remuneration*

As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

1.46                            0.50                           
-                              0.15                           

1.46                           0.65                          

5. Foreign Exchange exposure as on year end are as under:

As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

102.37                       74.90                        
32.64                         4.85                           

135.01                     79.75                       

NOTE NO. AA-  Other Disclosures as per Schedule-III of the Companies Act, 2013

Particulars

i) Purchases of Goods(Import)
ii) Plant & Machinery/Equipements

TOTAL

Particulars

i) Salary Expenses

1. Value of imports calculated on C.I.F basis by the company during the financial year in 
respect of 

i) Amount Receivable
ii) Advance received for supply of goods

TOTAL

Particulars

i) Export of goods

Particulars

i) For Audit Fees

TOTAL

ii) For Other Services

Particulars

* Net of Rs. 2 lakhs incurred during the year ended 31 March 2024 toward IPO



1. Current Ratio 1 1.35                     1.55                  -13.03% NA
2. Debt Equity Ratio 2 0.32                     0.37                  -11.76% NA
3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio 3 6.32                     8.20                  -22.92% NA

4. Return On Equity Ratio

4

33.38% 23.60%

41.43%
Due to increase in sales  and stagnated 

expenses resulting in to increasing 
overall profitability of the company 

5. Inventory Turnover ratio
5

14.53                  24.98                
-41.82%

Due to increase in purchase to fulfilled 
the contractual requirements

6. Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio
6

7.06                     5.36
31.90%

Improving the collection mechanism of 
the business 

7. Trade Payable Turnover Ratio
7

5.00                     4.96
0.86% NA

8. Net Capital Turnover Ratio
8

9.47                     8.12                  
16.63% NA

9. Net Profit Ratio

9

9.06% 6.03%

50.22%
Due to increase in sales  and stagnated 

expenses resulting in to increasing 
overall profitability of the company 

10. Return on Capital Employed

10

30.04% 22.07%

36.09%
Due to increase in sales  and stagnated 

expenses resulting in to increasing 
overall profitability of the company 

11. Return On Investment 11 7.76% 6.57% 18.14% NA

Variation 
between FY 24 

& FY 23

Reason for Variation                          
between FY 24 & FY 23

NOTE – AB

RATIO ANALYSIS AND ITS ELEMENTS
(Rs. in Lakhs Except Per Share Data)

NoteParticulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023



Additional Regulatory Information or Notes 

 

Note: 1 Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company: 

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is 
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed 
in “Note: I” on Property, plant and equipment to the financial statements, are held in the 
name of the Company. 
 
Note: 2 There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding 
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and 
rules made thereunder. 
 
Note: 3 Wilful Defaulter 

i. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in 
the payment of interest thereon to any lender 
 

ii. The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority. 

 

Note: 4 The Company has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956. 
 
Note: 5 Events Occurring After the Balance Sheet: 

 The equity shares of the company have been listed with the BSE Limited (“BSE”) i.e. 
the stock exchange on 17th May, 2024 on completion of its initial Public Offering (IPO). 
The Company has accordingly issued 36,00,000 equity shares of face value 10 each at 
a premium of 57 per share aggregating to 2412 lakhs. 
 

 On 31.05.2024, the company acquired remaining 3892858 equity shares of Jet Inks 
Pvt. Ltd having face value Rs. 10 each at Premium of 25.96 per share aggregating to 
1400 lakhs and hence, now Jet Inks Pvt. Ltd. became wholly owned subsidiary of the 
Aztec Fluids and Machinery Limited. 
 

Note: 6 Registration of charges with Registrar of companies 
The company has register all its charges within time or extended time period given in the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Note: 7 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for) 
A disclosure for a contingent liability is usually reported in the notes to financial restatements 
when there is a possible obligation that may, require an outflow of the Company's resources.  
 



Note: 8 Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 
Disclosure of the outstanding dues of Micro or Small Scale Industrial Enterprise(s) as per The 
Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise Development Act-2006, and the Company has disclosed in 
the Note No. F of the financial statement, the same as required by Schedule III to the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Note: 9 Related party transactions are already reported as per AS-18 of Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended, in the Note Z of the enclosed financial 
statements. 
 
Note: 10 Deferred Tax liability/Asset in view of Accounting Standard – 22: “Accounting for 
Taxes on Income”, the disclosure of the same has been reported in the Note C of the enclosed 
financial statement. 
 
Note: 11 Earnings per Share: 

Particulars 
For the Year/Period 

Ended 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

A. Total Number of equity shares outstanding at the 
end of the year  

1,00,00,000 20,00,000 

B. Weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year for the adjusted EPS  

1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 

C. Adjusted Net profit after tax available for equity 
shareholders (excluding exceptional and 
extraordinary items) (as restated) (In Lakhs) 

613.41 319.22 

D. Restated Basic and Diluted earnings per share 
(Rs.) 

6.13 3.19 

 
During the FY 23-24 the company has issued bonus shares of 80,00,000 at Rs. 10 each by 
capitalizing reserves & surplus balances. Thus, the total 1,00,00,000 equity shares have been 
considered while deriving EPS of the Company retrospectively for FY 22-23. 
 
Note: 12 Regrouping 
Previous year figures have been recasted/restated wherever necessary including those as 
required in keeping with revised Schedule III amendments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



For, K A R M A & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN No. 127544W/W100376 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 06th June, 2024 

 
CA Jignesh A. Dhaduk 

Designated Partner 
M.No.129149 

                                                                  UDIN: 24129149BKEBJO2134 
 

SD/-
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